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ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LIMITED 
CIN: L51909WB2001PLC093941 

29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No 407, Kolkata- 700013 
Tel: +91 033 6644 7200; Fax: +91 033 6644 7201; Email ID: abhaproperty@gmail.com 

Website: www.abhaproperty.in 
 

NOTICE 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of 
Abha Property Project Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’)  will be held on 
Saturday, 7th September, 2024 at 11.00 A.M. at the registered office at 29, Ganesh Chandra 
Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No 407, Kolkata- 700013 to transact the following business:- 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2024 together with the Reports of the 
Directors and Auditors thereon and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2024 together with the Report of the 
Auditors thereon.  

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Aditya Agarwalla (DIN: 00140683), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS:  

3. To re-appoint Mr. Amit Agarwalla (DIN: 00338081) as the ‘Managing Director’ of the 
Company and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 read 
with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies act 2013 and 
rules framed thereunder and applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 including any 
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being enforce and subject to 
such other approvals as may be necessary, the consent of the Members be and is hereby 
accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Amit Agarwalla (DIN: 00338081), as the ‘Managing 
Director’ of the Company for a further period of 5 (five) years (after expiring of his current 
term of 5 years on 30th May, 2024) with effect from 1st June, 2024, as per the terms and 
conditions including terms of remuneration (presently on honorary basis, but however, in 
future remuneration may be fixed within the limits specified in Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013) as specified in the Agreement to be executed between the Company 
and Mr. Amit Agarwalla.   
 

http://www.abhaproperty.in/
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its 
Committee thereof) be and are his hereby authorised to alter, vary and/or modify the 
terms and conditions of re-appointment including remuneration of Mr. Amit Agarwalla and 
to determine his rights, duties and powers in such manner as may be agreed to between 
the Board of Directors and Mr. Amit Agarwalla, without seeking any further approval of 
Members and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary, 
expedient and desirable to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

4. To approve material related party transactions between M/s. Abha Refractories Ltd. a 
wholly owned subsidiary (“WOS”) and Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, Director & Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Regulation 23 and other applicable provisions 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the consent of the 
shareholders be and is hereby accorded to M/s Abha Refractories Ltd. (‘ARL’), a Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary of the Company and Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, Director & Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company, related parties of the Company to sell upto 1,38,82,527 nos. 0.01% Non-Cumulative 
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (“OCRPS”) of Rs. 10/- each of Maithan 
Ceramic Ltd. held by Abha Refractories Ltd. to Mr. Aditya Agarwalla for a consideration not below 
Rs. 4.25 crore in one or more tranches during the Financial Year 2024-2025. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal and Ms. Ayushi Khaitan, Directors be and is 
hereby severally authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise with regard 
to giving effect to this Resolution and to do all such acts, deeds, things as may be necessary in its 
absolute discretion, to finalize any documents and writings related thereto and to sign and file 
necessary documents, e-form with Registrar of Companies/MCA Portal. 
 

5. To approve material related party transactions between M/s. Abha Refractories Ltd. a 
wholly owned subsidiary (“WOS”) and M/s. Maithan International, a Partnership firm and in 
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Regulation 23 and other applicable provisions 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the consent of 
shareholders be and is hereby accorded to M/s Abha Refractories Ltd. (ARL), a Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary of the Company to further provide a sum not exceeding Rs. 10 Crore to M/s. Maithan 
International, a Partnership firm, a related party of the Company  towards its capital in one or more 
tranches during the Financial Year 2024-2025.  
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal and Ms. Ayushi Khaitan, Directors be and is 
hereby severally authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise with regard 
to giving effect to this Resolution and to do all such acts, deeds, things as may be necessary in its 
absolute discretion, to finalize any documents and writings related thereto and to sign and file 
necessary documents, e-form with Registrar of Companies/MCA Portal. 

 
Registered Office: 
29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 
4th floor, Room No 407, Kolkata- 700013 
Tel.: 033-6644 7200 
Email: abhaproperty@gmail.com 
Web: www.abhaproperty.in  
CIN: L51909WB2001PLC093941 

By Order of the Board 
For Abha Property Project Limited 

 
 

Santanu Kumar Hazra 
Company Secretary 

  
Date: 05.07.2024 
Place: Kolkata  

 
NOTE: 
1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter 

referred to as ‘the Act’) in respect of Item No. 3 & 4 to be transacted at the 39th Annual General 
Meeting (hereinafter referred to as (‘the AGM’) in annexed hereto.  

 
2. Relevant details as required under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 

Regulation 2015, of person seeking re-appointment as Director under Item No. 2 and 3 of 
the Notice are mentioned herein. 

 
Name of Director Mr. Aditya Agarwalla Mr. Amit Agarwalla 
Director Identification Number (DIN) 00140683 00338081 
Brief Resume Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, 

presently is a full time 
Director and Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company.  
He has knowledge of more 
than 21 years in various 
facets of Steel, ceramic, 
refractories and other 
industries including in the 
field of Finance, 
administration and 
production. 

Mr. Amit Agarwalla, 
being Managing Director  
managing the 
operational activities of 
the organization and 
holds Directorship/ 
senior leadership 
position in some of his 
family owned company 
including Anjaneey Ferro 
Alloys Ltd. having 
experience and expertise 
of more than 25 years in 
the areas of Steel, ferro-
alloys industries 
including administration, 
production and 
management. 

mailto:abhaproperty@gmail.com
mailto:abhaproperty@gmail.com
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Date of Birth (Age in years) 28 December 1974; 49 
years 

27 August 1971; 52 years 

Qualification MBA (Finance) & B.E. Graduate 
Experience and expertise in specific 
functional areas 

22 years  26 years  

Date of first appointment on the 
Board of Directors of the Company 

14 August 2017 
 

1 June 2019 
 

The number of Meetings of the Board 
attended during the year 2023-2024 

Attended 4 Board Meetings 
during the FY 2023-2024 
 

Attended 6 Board 
Meetings during the FY 
2023-2024 
 

Nature of expertise in specific 
functional areas 

Experienced in various 
facets of Steel and other 
industries including in the 
field of Finance, 
administration and 
production 

Experienced in various 
facets of ferro alloys, 
refractory business and 
vast knowledge in 
several areas including 
administration, 
production and 
management, budgeting, 
corporate planning, 
finance and taxation. 

Name(s) of other companies in which 
directorships are held 

Maithan Ceramic Ltd. 
Maithan Advanced 
Materials Limited 
Sunidhi Tradelink Pvt Ltd 
R.H. Builders Pvt. Ltd. 
Indian Refractory Makers 
Association (a Section 8 
Company) 
(Mr. Aditya Agarwalla does 
not hold any directorship / 
committee membership in 
any other listed company) 

Abha Property Project 
Limited 
Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd. 
Ornate Tie-Up Pvt Ltd 
Kharkia Enclave Private 
Limited 
 
 
(Mr. Amit Agarwalla does 
not hold any directorship 
/ committee 
membership in any other 
listed company) 

Name(s) of other companies in which 
Committee 
chairmanship(s)/membership(s) are 
held 

Member of Audit 
Committee of Maithan 
Ceramic Ltd. 

Chairman of 
Remuneration 
Committee & Corporate 
Social Responsibility 
Committee of Anjaney 
Ferro Alloys Limited  

Shareholding in the Company 
including shareholding as a beneficial 
owner 

Nil Nil 
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Number of ESOPs granted Nil Nil 
Relationship with other Directors, 
Manager and Key Managerial 
Personnel of the company 

Mr. Vishal Agarwalla and 
Mr. Aditya Agarwalla both 
are the brothers. 

Mr. Amit Agarwalla, 
Managing Director, 
brother of Mr. Sumit 
Agarwalla, Director of 
the Company. 

Terms and conditions of appointment 
or re-appointment along with details 
of remuneration sought to be paid 

Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, a 
retiring director shall 
vacate his office at the 
ensuing annual general 
meeting & being eligible 
for appointment at the 
same AGM. No 
remuneration as well as 
Sitting fees was paid / to be 
paid to him. 

As mentioned above 

The remuneration last drawn 
(financial year 2023-2024) 

Nil Nil 

Name of listed entities from which 
the person has resigned un the past 
three years 

None None 

 
3. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT 

THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“AGM”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES 
TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE 
A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY, IN ORDER TO 
BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE COMPANY’S REGISTERED OFFICE, DULY 
COMPLETED AND SIGNED, NOT LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT (48) HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING. 
PROXIES SUBMITTED ON BEHALF OF LIMITED COMPANIES, SOCIETIES, ETC., MUST BE 
SUPPORTED BY APPROPRIATE RESOLUTIONS/AUTHORITY, AS APPLICABLE. MEMBERS ARE 
REQUESTED TO NOTE THAT A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF NOT EXCEEDING 
FIFTY (50) MEMBERS AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT 
(10%) OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY. IN CASE A PROXY IS PROPOSED 
TO BE APPOINTED BY A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT (10%) OF THE TOTAL 
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS, THEN SUCH PROXY SHALL NOT 
ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. 

 
4. In compliance with the relevant MCA Circulars and Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12 May 2020 read with SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 5 January 2023, issued by Equity Shares and Exchange Board of India 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘SEBI’), Notice of the Meeting is being sent only through electronic mode 
to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. 
Members may note that the Notice will also be available on the Company’s website 
www.abhaproperty.in, websites of the Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. (‘CSE’) and National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) as & when the same may be submitted and made available in the stock 
exchange website & NSDL.  
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Members, who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses with the Company or their respective 
Depository Participant, are therefore requested to register the same at the earliest.  

Further, please be informed that all the Members who have registered their e-mail addresses or 
not, are entitled to receive the Notice in physical form free of cost, upon specific request made by 
them to the Company. 
 

5. Members are requested to take a note of the circulars issued by SEBI bearing No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ 
MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated 3 November 2021 on ‘Common and simplified norms for 
processing investor’s service request by RTAs and norms for furnishing PAN, KYC details and 
Nomination’ read with No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2021/687 dated 14 December 
2021; and No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25 January 2022 on ‘Issuance 
of Equity Shares in dematerialized form in case of Investor Service Requests’. As per the said 
circulars, all members holding shares in physical form are mandatorily required to update their 
PAN, KYC details and nomination with the Company / RTA. In case any of these details are not 
updated the shares will be frozen. The prescribed forms for updating these details are available on 
the website of the Share Registrar and Transfer Agent at https://www.mdpl.in. 

 
6. The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Ms. Roashni Kumari Gupta, Proprietor of 

Roshni K Gupta & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Membership No.: 51189, C.P. No.: 
26202 as the Scrutinizer for conducting the E-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The 
Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman after completion of the scrutiny and the result of 
the voting process will be declared within 2 working days from the last date of e-voting at the 
Registered Office of the Company. The result of the e-voting, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report 
will be posted on the Company’s website and shall be communicated to all the Calcutta Stock 
Exchange Ltd. where the equity shares of the Company are listed. 
 

7. Resolutions, if passed by the requisite majority, shall be deemed to have been passed on 7th 
September, 2024 i.e., the day of annual general meeting for e-voting. Resolutions passed by 
Members with requisite majority, through e-voting shall be deemed to have been passed at a 
General Meeting of Members convened on that behalf. 

 
8. The physical copies of this Notice and all documents referred to in this Notice and the Explanatory 

Statement thereto and other documents as required under the law are available for inspection at 
the Registered Office of the Company from 11:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on all working days up to the 
date of the Meeting. 

 
9. Details of the Director proposed to be re-appointed as required in terms of SEBI Listing Regulations 

and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (“Secretarial Standards – 2”) issued by The Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India, has been provided in the Explanatory Statement and form an 
integral part of this Notice. 

 
10. Any person, who becomes the Member of the Company after dispatch of this Notice and holds 

shares as on the cut-off date i.e. Saturday, 31st August, 2024 may obtain the login ID and password 
by sending a request to the Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Maheshwari 
Datamatics Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘RTA’) at 5th Floor, 23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 
Kolkata-700001 (Mr. S. K. Chaubey), Phone No.: 033-2248-2248; e-mail: mdpldc@yahoo.com. 

 

mailto:mdpldc@yahoo.com
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11. However, if a Member is already registered with CDSL or NSDL for e-voting then he can use his 
existing user ID and password for casting his vote. If a Member forgot his password, he can reset 
his password by using “Forgot Password” option available on www.evotingindia.com. 

 
12. E-voting :- 

a) For the convenience of members and for proper conduct of the meeting, entry to 
the place of meeting will be regulated by attendance slip, which is a part of the 
Notice. Members are requested to sign at the place provided on the attendance slip 
and hand it over at the entrance to the venue. 

 
b) Members / proxies should bring the duly filled Attendance Slip attached herewith 

to attend the meeting. Duplicate Attendance Slip and / or copies of the Annual Report 
shall not be issued/available at the venue of the Meeting. 

 
c) Members, who hold shares in dematerialized form, are requested to bring their Client ID 

and DP ID Nos. for easier identification of attendance at the meeting. 
 
d) The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding will be 

available for inspection by the members at the AGM. 
 
e) A member desirous of getting any information on the accounts of the Company is requested 

to send the queries to the Company at least 10 days in advance of the meeting. 
 
f) The brief profile of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed, is given in the Note No. 2 

to the Notice. 
 
g) Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate change in their registered 

address mentioning full address in block letters with Pin code of the Post Office and 
bank particulars to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and in case of 
members holding their shares in electronic form, this information should be given to their 
Depository Participants immediately. 

 
h) The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for F.Y. 2023-24 are being sent by 

electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Company/Depositories, unless any Member has requested for a physical copy of the said 
documents. For Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies 
of the above mentioned documents are being sent. All these abovementioned documents 
will also be available on the Company's website www.abhaproperty.in by the Members. 
We, request the Members to update their email address with their depository participant 
to ensure that the annual reports and other documents reach them on their preferred mail 
address. 

i) As mandated by The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), every participant in the 
Equity Shares market has to submit Permanent Account Number (PAN).  Members  holding 
shares  in  electronic  form  are,  therefore,  requested  to  submit  the  PAN  to  their  Depository 
Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares 
in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company/ RTA. 
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13. Voting through electronic means 
 
i. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation,2015, the Company is pleased to 
provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered 
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted 
through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic 
voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided 
by National Equity Shares Depository Limited (NSDL). 

 
ii. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the 

members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able 
to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper. 

 
iii. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also 

attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 
 

iv. The remote e-voting period commences on 4th September, 2024 a t 9:00 A.M. (IST) and ends 
on 6th September, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. (IST). During this period members of the Company, 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 
31st August, 2024, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on is solution is cast by the member, 
the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on 4th September, 2024 a t 9:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on 6th 
September, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. (IST) The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for 
voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 
Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 31st August, 2024, may cast their 
vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share 
in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 31st 
August, 2024. 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding Equity 
Shares in demat  mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding Equity Shares in demat mode are allowed to 
vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 
in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding Equity Shares in demat mode is given below: 
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Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 
 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding Equity 
Shares in 
demat mode 
with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner”  
icon  under   “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 
be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS 
e-Services, option to register is available at  
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” 
or click at  https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 
 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page  of e-Voting system 
is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will  open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL  and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 
you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting  your  vote  during  the  remote  e-Voting  
period. 

 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 

“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

 

 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
Equity Shares in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 
through their user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or  
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able 
to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at  
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra tion 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat  Account Number and PAN No.  from  a link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 
the demat Account.  

  
                         

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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 After successful authentication, user will be  provided  links  for the 
respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
Equity Shares in 
demat mode) login 
through their 
depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 
Helpdesk  for  Individual  Shareholders  holding  Equity Shares  in  demat  mode  for  any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
 Individual Shareholders holding 

Equity Shares in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990  and  1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders holding 
Equity Shares in demat mode 
with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at  
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding Equity Shares in demat mode and shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical 
mode. 

 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 
1. Visit  the  e-Voting website  of  NSDL.  Open  web  browser by  typing  the  following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 

is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c)   For   Members   holding   shares   in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio  number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 
password to login and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will  need to 

retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 
system will force you to change your password. 

 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace 
the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email 
and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for  NSDL account, 
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your 
‘initial password’. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 
in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered. 

 
6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 
a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares  in  your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 

on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 

are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 
2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e- Voting 

period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. 
3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
6. 6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 
 
General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the  relevant  Board  Resolution/  Authority letter 
etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are 
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to roshni.gupta0088@gmail.com with a 
copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 
Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution  /  Authority  Letter" 
displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who 
acquires shares of the Company and becomes member of the Company after  the notice 
is send through e-mail and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 30th August, 
2024, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, 
then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you 
forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User 
Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 . In 
case of Individual Shareholders holding Equity Shares in demat mode who acquires 
shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the 
Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 30th August, 2024, the subsidiary 
of a listed entity i.e may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under Step 1 
:“Access to NSDL e-Voting system”(Above). 

3. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 
event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset  Password?” option  available on www.evoting.nsdl.com  to  reset the 
password. 

4. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the  download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 
44  30 or  send  a  request  to  Ms.  Pallavi  Mhatre,  Senior  Manager,  NSDL  at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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Process for those shareholders whose email IDs are not registered with the 
depositories for procuring user ID and password and registration of e mail IDs for e-
voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) 
by email to abhaproperty@gmail.com or mdpldc@yahoo.com 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + 
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to abhaproperty@gmail.com or mdpldc@yahoo.com. 
If you are an Individual shareholders holding Equity Shares in demat mode, you are 
requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for 
e-Voting and joining virtual  meeting  for  Individual  shareholders  holding  Equity 
Shares  in  demat  mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting  by  providing  above  mentioned 
documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding Equity Shares in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number 
and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
(HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS ‘THE ACT’) IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS TO BE 
TRANSACTED AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS ‘THE MEETING 
or AGM’): 
 

ITEM NO. 3 

Mr. Amit Agarwalla was appointed as ‘Managing Director’ of the Company for a period of 5 (five) 
years with effect from 1 June 2019 and consequently his tenure will expire on 30 May 2024. The 
Board of Directors at their meeting held on 29 May 2024, on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee as well as Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, re-appointed 
Mr. Amit Agarwalla as the ‘Managing Director’ of the Company, for a further period of 5 (five) years 
with effect from 1 June 2024, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company.  

Mr. Amit Agarwalla has strong understanding of ferro alloys, refractory business and vast knowledge 
in several areas including administration, production and management, budgeting, corporate 
planning, finance and taxation. He possesses rich and varied experience in production and logistics 
management of ferro alloys.  

Mr. Agarwalla has re-appointed presently on honorary basis without remuneration, but however, 
in future remuneration may be fixed within the limits specified in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
2013 with effect from 1st June, 2024 as per existing terms and conditions entered with the Company 
and Mr. Amit Agarwalla. 

  

The tenure and brief details of remuneration sought to be paid are as follows:  

1. TENURE: A period of 5 years commencing from 1 June 2024 up to 30 May 2029.  

2. REMUNERATION: Mr. Amit Agarwalla be continue to act as Managing Director without 
remuneration, presently on honorary basis, but however, in future remuneration may be fixed 
within the limits specified in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, his 
remuneration/remuneration structure need not require any approval from the Board.  

He shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors or any 
Committees thereof so long as he functions as the ‘Managing Director’ of the Company.  

Mr. Amit Agarwalla, as a director shall be liable to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and such retirement 
shall not result in any break in his office, if he is re-appointed at the same meeting at which he retires 
by rotation.  

The re-appointment of Mr. Amit Agarwalla as the ‘Managing Director’ requires the approval of the 
Members by way of a Special Resolution in terms of Regulation 17(6)(e) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(hereinafter referred as ‘Listing Regulations’). 
 
A brief profile of Mr. Amit Agarwalla, as required pursuant to the Listing Regulations and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) is given in Note No. 2 of this Notice.  

The Board of Directors, therefore, recommend the Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of this 
Notice for approval by the Members.  

Mr. Sumit Agarwalla (Director), Mr. Amit Agarwalla (Managing Director) and their relatives are 
deemed to be concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution as set out at Item 
No. 3 of this Notice.  
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Save and except the above, none of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and/or their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice. 
 
ITEM NO. 4 

M/s. Abha Refractories Ltd. a wholly owned subsidiary (‘ARL’) of Abha Property Project Ltd. (the 
’Company or the listed entity’) proposes to enter into transaction with Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, 
Director & Chief Financial Officer being a related party for selling of upto 1,38,82,527 nos. 0.01% 
Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (“OCRPS”) of Rs. 
10/- each of Maithan Ceramic Ltd. held it during the Financial Year 2024-2025 (hereinafter 
referred as “the Proposed Transaction”)  
 
As per Regulation 2(zc) a related party transaction includes transaction including transfer of 
resources between a listed entity or its subsidiary on one hand and a related party of the listed 
entity or any of its subsidiary on the other hand.      
 
As per the provisions of Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 any transactions between 
the related party shall be considered as “Material” if the transaction entered into/ to be entered 
into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds Rs. 
1000 crore or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited 
financial statements of the listed entity, whichever is lower and shall require prior approval of the 
audit committee as well as shareholders of the Company by means of an ordinary resolution.  
 
Members may please note that based on the criteria as mentioned above in Regulation 23 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the proposed transaction to be entered into by the subsidiary company 
of the listed entity i.e. Abha Refractories Ltd. with its Related Party i.e. Mr. Aditya Agarwalla during 
the Financial Year 2024-2025 is “Material” and the value of which either singly or all taken together 
are likely to exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per audited financial 
statements of FY: 2023-2024 and therefore requires prior approval of the shareholders for the said 
transaction by Ordinary Resolutions. 
 
Members are hereby informed that pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, no 
related party of the Company shall vote on the Resolution to approve related party transactions 
during the Financial Year 2024-2025 as mentioned above if such Member is a related party 
irrespective of the entity is a related party to the particular transaction or not. 
 
It is in the above context that, Resolution No. 4 is placed for approval of the Members of the 
Company. 
 
The Audit Committee  has on the basis of relevant details provided by the management, as required 
under the relevant provisions of law, reviewed and approved the said transaction, subject to 
approval of the Members. 
 
Information required under regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing regulation read with SEBI Master 
Circular dated July 11, 2023 is given below: 
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Particulars Details 
Name of the related party and its 
relationship with the listed entity or 
its subsidiary, including nature of its 
concern or interest (financial or 
otherwise) 

Mr. Aditya Agarwalla is the Director & Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company and M/s. Abha Refractories Ltd. 
(‘ARL’) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 
Accordingly they are related parties of the Company in 
terms of Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations.  
 
The Company is the holding Company of ARL and holds 
100.00% of share capital of ARL as on the date of this 
Notice. 
 
Mr. Aditya Agarwalla currently, does not hold any 
Directorship position in ARL, a 100% subsidiary of the 
Company. 

Name of the director or key 
managerial personnel who is related, 
if any and nature of relationship 

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 
including its Independent Directors of the Company 
is/are related to ARL, subsidiary of the Company.  
Mr. Aditya Agarwalla being KMP of the Company is a 
party to the proposed transaction.  
  

Type of material terms and particulars 
of the proposed transaction 

Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, Director & CFO of the Company 
proposes to purchase upto 1,38,82,527 nos. preference 
shares (OCRPS) of Rs. 10/- each of Maithan Ceramic Ltd. 
held by Abha Refractories Ltd. in one or more tranches  
during the Financial Year 2024-2025. The preference 
shares have been valued as on valuation date 31st 
March, 2024 of Rs. 2.18 per fully paid-up 0.01% OCRPS 
of Rs. 10 each by a Registered Valuer at Rs.3.02 Crore.   
Total consideration shall not below Rs. 4.25 Crore 
Consideration to be paid though banking channel.- 

Tenure of the proposed transaction 
(particular tenure shall be specified) 

The proposed transactions are to be entered during the 
financial year 2024-2025 (i.e. 1 April 2024 to 31 March 
2025) 

Value of the proposed transactions Not less than Rs. 4.25 Crore (Rupees Four Crore Twenty 
Five Lakh) 

Value of RPT as % of :  
 
• Company’s audited consolidated 
annual turnover for the financial year 
2023-2024  
• Subsidiary’s annual standalone 
turnover for financial year 2023-2024 
 

 
 
135.31%  
 
 
341.80%  
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Details of transaction relating to any 
loans, inter-corporate deposits, 
advances or investments made or 
given by the listed entity or its 
subsidiary. 

Not Applicable 

(i) Details of the source of funds in 
connection with transaction. 

Not Applicable 

(ii) Where any financial indebtedness 
is incurred to make or give loans, 
inertcorporate deposits, advances, or 
investments (Nature of indebtedness, 
cost of funds, tenure) 

Not Applicable 

(iii) Applicable terms, including 
covenants, tenure, interest rate and 
repayment schedule, whether secured 
or unsecured: if secured, the nature of 
security. 

Not Applicable 

(iv) The purpose for which the funds 
will be utilized by the ultimate 
beneficiary of such funds pursuant to 
the RPT. 

Not Applicable 

Justification as to why the RPT is in the 
interest of the listed entity. 

Abha Property Project Ltd. is 100% holding company of 
Abha Refractories Ltd., M/s. Abha Refractories Ltd. 
proposes to enter into transaction with Mr. Aditya 
Agarwalla, Director & Chief Financial Officer being a 
related party for selling of upto 1,38,82,527 nos. 
preference shares (‘OCRPS’) of Maithan Ceramic 
Ltd. at a fair value determined on the basis of 
valuation report if a Independent Registered valuer. 
 
The proposed transaction shall liquidate the investment 
made by Abha Refractories Ltd.  

A copy of the valuation or other 
external party report, if any such 
report has been relied upon 

Valuation Report dated of M/s. Independent Registered 
Valuer (IBBI Regn. No. IBBI/RV/06/2019/11646) has 
been relied upon.  

Any other information that may be 
relevant 

All important information forms part of the statement 
setting out material facts, pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, forming part of this Notice. 
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The said transaction, being a material related party transaction, requires prior approval of the 
Members of the Company in accordance with Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. Your 
Directors recommend passing of the resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of this Notice as Ordinary 
Resolution.  
 
The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Act, 
the related parties as defined thereunder (whether such related party(ies) is a party to the aforesaid 
transactions or not), shall not vote to approve resolutions under Item No. 4. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No.4 
in the accompanying Notice for approval by the Members of the Company. 
 
All documents concerning Item No. 4 are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the 
Company from 11 A.M. to 5 P.M. on all working days till the date of the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting of shareholders. 
 
Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, Director & Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Vishal Agarwalla, Director being 
related party to the proposed transaction with ARL and their respective relatives are interested in 
the said transaction.  
 
Except Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, Director & Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Vishal Agarwalla, Director 
and their respective relatives, none of the other Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their respective relatives is/are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 
the said Resolution at Item No.4 of the Notice. 
 
ITEM NO. 5 

M/s. Abha Refractories Ltd. a wholly owned subsidiary (‘ARL’) of Abha Property Project Ltd. (the 
’Company or the listed entity’) proposes to enter into transactions with M/s Maithan International, 
a partnership firm (‘Firm’ or ‘MI’) in which Director of the Company is a partner to further provide a 
sum not exceed Rs. 10.00 Crore towards its capital in one or more tranches during the Financial Year 
2024-2025. ARL, Mr. Vishal Agarwalla and Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, Directors of the Company are the 
partners in Maithan International.  
 
As per Regulation 2(zc) a related party transaction includes transaction including transfer of 
resources between a listed entity or its subsidiary on one hand and a related party of the listed 
entity or any of its subsidiary on the other hand.      
 
As per the provisions of Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 any transactions between 
the related party shall be considered as “Material” if the transaction entered into/ to be entered 
into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds Rs. 
1000 crore or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited 
financial statements of the listed entity, whichever is lower and shall require prior approval of the 
audit committee as well as shareholders of the Company by means of an ordinary resolution.  
 
Members may please note that based on the criteria as mentioned above in Regulation 23 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the proposed transaction to be entered into by the subsidiary company 
of the listed entity i.e. Abha Refractories Ltd. with its Related Parties i.e. Maithan International 
during the Financial Year 2024-2025 is “Material” and the value of which either singly or all taken 
together are likely to exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per 
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audited financial statements of FY: 2023-2024 and therefore requires prior approval of the 
shareholders for the said transaction by Ordinary Resolutions. 
 
It is in the above context that, Resolution No. 5 is placed for approval of the Members of the 
Company. 
 
The Audit Committee  has on the basis of relevant details provided by the management, as required 
under the relevant provisions of law, reviewed and approved the said transaction, subject to 
approval of the Members. 
 
Information required under regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing regulation read with SEBI Master 
Circular dated July 11, 2023 is given below: 
 

Particulars Details 
Name of the related party and its 
relationship with the listed entity or 
its subsidiary, including nature of its 
concern or interest (financial or 
otherwise) 

M/s. Abha Refractories Ltd. (‘ARL’) is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of the Company and Maithan International (a 
‘Partnership Firm’ or ‘MI’) are the related parties to the 
proposed transaction. 
  
Mr. Vishal Agarwalla, Director and Mr. Aditya 
Agarwalla, Director & KMP of the Company are the 
partners in MI, being the related parties of the 
Company in terms of as defined under sub-section 
(76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 and/or 
Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.  
 
The Company is the holding Company of ARL and holds 
100.00% of share capital of ARL as on the date of this 
Notice. 
 
Mr. Vishal Agarwalla and Mr. Aditya Agarwalla currently, 
does not hold any Directorship position in ARL, a 100% 
subsidiary of the Company. 

Name of the director or key 
managerial personnel who is related, 
if any and nature of relationship 

None of the Directors/KMP including its Independent 
Directors of the Company is/are held directorship in 
ARL, subsidiary of the Company. 
 
Mr. Vishal Agarwalla, Director, Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, 
Director & Chief Financial Officer of the Company, 
related parties are partners in Maithan International, a 
partnership firm.  
 

Type of material terms and particulars 
of the proposed transaction 

1. ARL is the existing partner of MI. 
2. Mr. Vishal Agarwalla & Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, 

Directors and their respective relatives are the 
existing partners of MI. 

3. ARL proposed ti provide a sum not exceeding Rs. 
10.00 Crore to MI towards its capital. 

4. MI to use funds for its business purposes only. 
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Tenure of the proposed transaction 
(particular tenure shall be specified) 

The proposed transactions are to be entered during the 
financial year 2024-2025 (i.e. 1 April 2024 to 31 March 
2025) 

Value of the proposed transactions Upto Rs. 10.00 Crore (Rupees Ten Crore) 

Value of RPT as % of :  
 
• Company’s audited consolidated 
annual turnover for the financial year 
2023-2024  
• Subsidiary’s annual standalone 
turnover for financial year 2023-2024 
 

 
 
318.59%  
 
 
804.22%  

Details of transaction relating to any 
loans, inter-corporate deposits, 
advances or investments made or 
given by the listed entity or its 
subsidiary. 

The proposed transaction is for providing capital to MI 
(being an investment) made by ARL.  

(i) Details of the source of funds in 
connection with transaction. 

Funded from the sale proceeds of preference shares of 
held in Maithan Ceramic Ltd by ARL sold to Mr. Aditya 
Agarwalla. 

(ii) Where any financial indebtedness 
is incurred to make or give loans, 
inertcorporate deposits, advances, or 
investments (Nature of indebtedness, 
cost of funds, tenure) 

Abha Refractories Ltd. 

(iii) Applicable terms, including 
covenants, tenure, interest rate and 
repayment schedule, whether secured 
or unsecured: if secured, the nature of 
security. 

No loan is proposed to be provided. Investment to be 
provided is unsecured.  

(iv) The purpose for which the funds 
will be utilized by the ultimate 
beneficiary of such funds pursuant to 
the RPT. 

The funds proposes to be utilized by MI for its business 
purposes only. 

Justification as to why the RPT is in the 
interest of the listed entity. 

Not Applicable. 

A copy of the valuation or other 
external party report, if any such 
report has been relied upon 

Not Applicable.  
   

Any other information that may be 
relevant 

All important information forms part of the statement 
setting out material facts, pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, forming part of this Notice. 
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The said transaction, being a material related party transaction, requires prior approval of the 
Members of the Company in accordance with Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. Your 
Directors recommend passing of the resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of this Notice as Ordinary 
Resolution.  
 
The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Act, 
the related parties as defined thereunder (whether such related party(ies) is a party to the aforesaid 
transactions or not), shall not vote to approve resolutions under Item No. 5. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 
5 in the accompanying Notice for approval by the Members of the Company. 
 
All documents concerning Item No. 5 are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the 
Company from 11 A.M. to 5 P.M. on all working days till the date of the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting of shareholders. 
 
Mr. Vishal Agarwalla, Director and Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, Director & CFO being related party along 
with their relatives to the proposed transaction between ARL and MI are interested in the said 
transaction.  
 
Except Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, Director & Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Vishal Agarwalla, Director 
and their respective relatives, none of the other Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their respective relatives is/are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 
the said Resolution at Item No.5 of the Notice. 

Registered Office: 
29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 
4th floor, Room No 407, Kolkata- 700013 
Tel.: 033-6644 7200 
Email: abhaproperty@gmail.com 
Web: www.abhaproperty.in  
CIN: L51909WB2001PLC093941 

By Order of the Board 
For Abha Property Project Limited 

    

Santanu Kumar Hazra 
Company Secretary 

Date: 05.07.2024 
Place: Kolkata  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:abhaproperty@gmail.com
mailto:abhaproperty@gmail.com
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ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LIMITED 
CIN: L51909WB2001PLC093941 

29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No 407, Kolkata- 700013 
Tel: +91 033 6644 7200; Fax: +91 033 6644 7201; Email ID: abhaproperty@gmail.com 

Website: www.abhaproperty.in 
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

PLEASE BRING THIS ATIENDANCE SLIP TO THE MEETING HALLAND HAND IT OVER AT THE 
ENTRANCE 

 

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company being 
held on Saturday, 7th September, 2024 at 11.00  A.M. at the registered office at 29, Ganesh 
Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No 407, Kolkata- 700013.  

Serial No : ____________ 
 
Name and Registered Address of the  
Sole/first named Member  : 

Name(s) of the Joint Member(s), if any  : 

Regd Folio No. I DP ID/Client ID No.  :  

Number of shares held   : 

Name of the Proxy I Representative : 

 
Signature of the Member I Proxy I 

   Authorized Representative 
 

NAME OF THE HOLDER FOLIO/DPID/CLIENT ID NO. NO. OF SHARES 

   

FOR ATTENTION OF MEMBERS 
 
Members may please note the electronic voting particulars are set out below for the purpose 
of e-voting in terms of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014. Detailed instructions for e-voting 
are given in the Annual General Meeting notice. 
 

ELECTRONIC VOTING  PARTICULARS 
 

EVEN CE-Voting Event Number) USER ID PASSWORD I PIN 

   

Note: Please follow the e-voting instructions mentioned in the Notice. 
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ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LIMITED 
CIN: L51909WB2001PLC093941 

29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No 407, Kolkata- 700013 
Tel: +91 033 6644 7200; Fax: +91 033 6644 7201; Email ID: abhaproperty@gmail.com 

Website: www.abhaproperty.in 
Proxy Form 

(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014) 

 
Name of the Member(s): .................................................................................................... ................................................. ................................ 

 
Registered Address: ................................................ ................................................. ................................................. ....................................... 

 
E-mail ID: ......................................................... ................................................. .............................................. ................................................... 

 
Folio No./DP IDand Client ID: ............................................................ ................................................. ............................................................... 

 
I/We, being the member(s) of Power Finance Corporation Limited holding.............................................shares of the company, hereby 
appoint:  
1.    Name: ............................................................................. .................  Email ID: ......................................................... ............................. 

Address: ............................................................................................. Signature:___________________________, or failing him/her 
 

2.  Name: ............................................................................. .................  Email ID: ......................................................... ......... 

Address:..............................................................................................  Signature:___________________________ ,or failing him/her 

3.    Name: ............................................................................. .................  Email ID: ......................................................... ............................... 
 

Address: ..................................................................... .....................  Signature: ___________________________________________ 

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 39th Annual General meeting of the Company being held 
on Saturday, 7th September, 2024 at 11.00 a.m. at the registered office at 29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No 407, Kolkata- 700013 and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of resolutions for following businesses : 
 

Ordinary Business   

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2024 together with the Reports of 
the Directors and Auditors thereon and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement 
of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2024 together with the Report 
of the Auditors thereon. 

  

2  To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Aditya Agarwalla (DIN: 00140683), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

  

Special Business   

3. To re-appoint Mr. Amit Agarwalla (DIN: 00338081) as the ‘Managing Director’ of the Company.    

4. To approve material related party transactions between M/s. Abha Refractories Ltd. a wholly 
owned subsidiary (“WOS”) and Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, Director & Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company. 

  

5. To approve material related party transactions between M/s. Abha Refractories Ltd. a wholly 
owned subsidiary (“WOS”) and M/s. Maithan International, a Partnership firm. 

  

Signed this ............. day  of…………….………._  ..............2_024 
 
Signature of shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)   

 

NOTES:
1. This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and stamped and deposited at the Registered Office ofthe Company, not 

laterthan 48 hours before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting. 
2. In terms of Clause 6.4.1 of Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings, the Proxy-holder shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting. 

(Affix Revenue Stamp of 
appropriate value) 
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INDI
RAJGARIA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT ATIDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of
ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the standalone Financial statements

Opinion

we have audited the standalone financial statements ofAbha Property Project Limited (.othe company,,),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3lstlVlarch,2O24, the Statement of profit and Loss (including
Other Comphrensive Income) the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity foi
the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required ty 1ne Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2024, its Loss and its Cash Flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143
(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2Al3 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the
Companies Act,20l3("the Acf') with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements

that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the company

in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Skndards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes the

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding

of the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
a true and fair view and are free from

Contd...
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

continue as a going concem, disclosing, as aiplicabt", -utt"r, related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of iccounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting proc€ss.

Auditors, Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identiff and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those ris[<s, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from effor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

' Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143 (3) (i) of the Companies Act,2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions tbat may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modiff our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going aoraa*.

'z{"-;::}"'
,.1:'.lr;:-:"::::-i''t '-.'..1-

:i;-,,.]:&
-*)

Contd.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materialrty and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of the identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identifr during our audit.

We also provide those charged with goverlance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("fhe Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (l 1) of section 143 of the Companies Act,2013, we give a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extEnt applicable, as under:
(t) (a) There was no Property, Plant & Equipment in the company during the year. Hence, this clause
relating to maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details &
situation of Property, Plant & Equipment & intangible assets is not applicable.

(b) Since there was no Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) in the company during the year, this
clause relating to physical verification of PPE by the management is not applicable.

(c) Since there was no immovable properties in the company during the year, this clause relating
to maintaining title deeds of all immovable properties in the name ofthe company is not applicable..

(d) Since there was no Property, Plant & Equipment @PE) in the company during the year, this
clause relating to revaluation of its Property, Plant & Equipment is not applicable. ; '- 

.

i, .i' "contd...
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(e) Based on the audit procedure applied by us & as per information available and explanations
given to us, we report that no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made
thereunder.

(iD (a) There was no inventory in the company during the year. Hence this clause relating to physical
verification of inventory is not applicable to the company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned/ availing working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores during the year & hence requirement of filling the quarterly returns or statements by the
company is not applicable to Company.

(iii) (a) Based on the audit procedures applied by us & as per information available & explanations
given by the management, we report that during the year, the Company has not provided any
guarantee or security nor made any investment nor granted any loans or advances in the nafure of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, LLP or other parties

(b) Since the company has, during the year, not made any fresh investments nor provided any
guarantees nor given any securities, this clause about the terms & conditions of grant of loans and
advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided being prejudicial to the interest of the company
is not applicable.

(c) As per information available & explanations given by the management, the company has not
granted loans & advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, this clause about schedule of repayment of principal & payment of
interest & regularity of receipt thereof is not applicable.

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms,
limited liability parhrerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) No loans or advances in the nature of loans, which have fallen due during the year, have been
renewed or extended and no fresh loans have been granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given
to same parties.

(D The Company has not granted any advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without speciffing any terms or period of repayment to companies, frms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties.

(iv) According to information available & explanations given to us, since the company has not
granted any loans, nor provided any guarantees or securities, therefore provisions of Section 185 &
186 of the Companies Act,2013 are not applicable for the year covered by this report. The Investment
made has been disclosed in Note No 3 of Financial Statements
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(v) According to information available and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted
any deposit within the meaning of the section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act and the rules framed there under.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed for the maintenance of cost records by the company
as required under section 148 (l) of the Act.

(vii) (a) According to the records of the company, the company is generally regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues viz. Income Tax with appropriate authorities. We have been iniormed that
Goods and Service Tax (GST), Provident Fund, ESI, Cess are not applicable to the company.
According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no undisputed statutory due
outstanding as at the year end for a period of more than six months from the date of becoming payable.

(b) We have been informed that there is no amount remaining outstanding as at the year end
towards any disputed statutory dues.

(viii) Based on the audit procedures applied & as per information available and explanations given by
the management, we report that the company has, during the year, not surrendered or disclosed any
transaction in the tax assessment under Income Tax Act, 1961 which was previously not recorded in the
books ofaccount.

(ix) (a) Since the company has not taken any amount from any lender including any bank and financial
institutions, this clause relating to default in repayment of dues is not applicable to the company during
the year covered under this report.

(b) As per information available and explanations given by the management, we report that the
company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) Based on the audit procedures applied & as per information available and explanations given by
the management, we report that no term loans were obtained by the company during the year.

(d) Based on the audit procedures applied & as per information available and explanations given

by the management, we report that funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term
purposes.

(e) Based on the audit procedures applied & as per information available and explanations given by
the management, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligation of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) Based on the audit procedures applied & as per information available and explanations given by
the management, we report that the company has not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of
securities held in subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies

-5-
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(x) (a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public off[er or further public offer

(including debt instruments) during the year.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private allotment of shares or

convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the company

carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to

information & explanation given to us, we have neither come across any incidence of fraud on or
by the company nor we have been informed of any such case as by the management.

(b) No report u/s 143 (12) in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 has been filed by us with the Central Government during the
yeat.

(c) We have not been informed of receipt of any whistle blower complaints by the company
during the year.

(xii)The Company is not aNidhi Company.

(xiii) According to the information available & explanations given to us, the company has complied
with provisions of section 177 & 188 of the Act, where applicable, in respect of transactions with the
related parties and details thereof have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to information available & explanations given to us, the Compwry has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size & nature of its business. The Report of the intemal auditors for the
period under audit were considered by us.

(xv) Based on the audit procedure applied by us & as per information available & explanation given
to us, we are of opinion that the company has not entered into any non cash transaction with any of the
directors or persons connected with them.

(xvi) a) The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India as required under section 45-lA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from Reserve Bank of India as per Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

c) As per information available & explanation given to us, we are of opinion that the company
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank
of India' 

'".l'f 
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d) The Group does not have any CIC. si "' '"
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(xvii) The company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year while in the
immediately preceding financial year there was no cash loss

(xviii) There was resignation by the statutory auditors during the year and no issues, objections
or concerns were raised by the outgoing auditors.

(xix) Based on the financial ratios, ageing & expected dates of realisation of financial assets

and payment of financial liabilities & other information accompanying the financial statements as

well as our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plan, we are of the opinion that,
as on the date of the audit report, no material uncertainty exists about the company's capability of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as & when they fall due within a period
ofone year from the date ofbalance sheet.

(>o<) (a) The second proviso to section 135 (5) of the said Act relating to unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act is not
applicable to company during the year as its net worth of the company is below Rs. 500 Crores,
Turnover is below Rs. 1,000 Crores & Net Profit is below Rs. 5 Crore in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(b) The provisions in respect of transferring unspent amount of ongoing project under section
135 (5) to special account in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 (6) of the said Act is
not applicable to the company during the year.

(xxi) The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been
included in this report.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss and the Standalone
Cash Flow Statement and statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books ofaccount.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 20 14.

Contd...
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e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31.'t March, 2024,takenon
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3l.t March, 2024, from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure 'A'.
g. No managerial remuneration has been paid during the year & provisions of Section 197 read with
schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the company.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule I I
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

(D The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
other than those, is any, already disclosed in the financial statements.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thlat
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has further represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

2 9 l'4AY 2l,74
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(v) No dividend was declared or paid during the year by the Company requiring compliance with
section 123 of the Act
(vi) Based on our examination which included test check, we report that the company has
migrated, during the year, to 'Tally Edit Log' software & has thereafter maintained its books of
account using the said accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility. Further during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.

Further, as proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April l, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for
the year ended March 31,2024.

For Rajgaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 314241E

^IKolkata; 29rH l,dayJ;024
UDIN : 243046018KA8V[I5358

(CA Dibya Agarval)
Partner

Membership No.304601
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Re: Abha Pronertv Proiect Limited
Annexure-A to the Standalone Independent Auditors' Report on Standalone Financial Statements -

31.03.2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) sub +ection 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act,2013 ('the Act')

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Abha
Property Project Limited ('the Company') as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on the date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31s March 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the Company's Policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') and the standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

'. Contd..
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of intemal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud and error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial strtements

A company's intemal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation

of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions ofthe company's assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transaction are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of the Management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition ofthe Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial Controls with reference to standalone linancial
stetements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility ofcollusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial controls
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that tlte degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Rajgaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 314241F,
Kolkata; 29rHMay,2024
UDIN : 24304601BKABVH5358

ai' Agarwal)
Partner

Membership No.304601

135A, B. R. B. Basu Road,2'd Floor, Kolkata - 700 001 ;PlrnJ,ne:.2242 9lO7



CIN: L51909WB200{ PLC09394i

Note AS AT
31.03.2024

6,150.13
7,96,068.33 7,48,4'.11.46

F[rn
7.96.{36.61

383.56

25,328.71

1g,ggg.g0
7,70,424.34 7,20,857.37

7.96.136.61

31.03.2023

7,54,561.59

21.84

__re1583/9_

42.50

14,683.76

7,39,857.17

_7,54,58e3!_

No.

ASSETS
FinancialAssets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
lnvestments

Non FinancialAssets
Current Tax Assets (Net)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities
Non Financial Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

EQUlTY
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

2

3

4

7
5,361.29

707.04

5

6

7
8

18,999.80
7,51,424.54

Policies
notes to above

For & on behalf of Board of Directors'

n
TYartZ

(Amit Agarwalla,
DIN:00338081

A
(Aditya
DIN:00140683

6-*lfi" W.l'Vtu'
(Santanu Kumar Hazra)
Company Secretary

l35A,BRBBasuRoad
Kolkata - 700 001

1

an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
For and on behalf of

Raigaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Registration No.31 4241 E

Director)

CA Dibya Agarwal
Partner

Membership No.304601

Dated:2 g l,lAY 2024



(Amount in Rupe$ thousands)
PARTICULARS iIFIE YEAR ENDED

31.03.2024
YEAR ENDED

31.03.2023No.

INCOME
Other lncome

TOTAL REVENUE

t{rITIFffi
Employee Benefi t Expenses
Other Expenses

Significant Accountins Policies

9 682.77

fiaFro

25,328.71

.17

't 1,876.09
11

130.00
282.07

10
11

1

4

Current Tax
For Earlier Years
Deffered Tax

PROFIT(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INGOME

(14,883.76)

a)ltem that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
- lncome Tax on (a) above

b)ltem that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss
- lncome Tax on (a) above

Other Comprehensive lncome (a+b)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EARNINGS PER EQUTTY SHARE OF FACE VALUE OF R!.10r- EACH
Basic & Diluted Earning (Rs/P) 12

2,933.79

11,46/..02

8,530.23

4.49

2,933.79

1

The notes refened to above form an intergal part of these standalone financial statements.

This is the Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss refened to in our report of even date
For and on behalf of

For & on behalf of Board of Directors RaJgarla & Associatec
Chartered Accountants

Reglstratlon No.314241 E

,*;t' aiIN

(Adltya
EINmFIEf'ff:B

Director)

cYo)
A 6*.iil" h. H.e,

(Santanu Kumar Haz ra)

CA Dibya Agarwal
Partner

itembeEhip No. 304601

l35A,BRBBasuRoad
Kolkata - 700 00'l

2 9 M/"Y 2024
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ABITA?ROPERW PROJECT LTD.
CIN: L51 909W82001 PLG093941

STANDALONE GASH FLOW STATEmENT FORTHEYEAR ENDED 3tST UARCH 202.1

(Amount in Rupoe€ thoutands)
PARTICULARS AS AT

31.03.2021
AS AT

3'1.03.2023
(A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities :-
Net ProfiV(Loss) Before Tax

Adiustments For :-
Gain/(Lo€s) on Restatement of Non Current

lnvestments

lnterest Received
Dividend lncome

58,342.98

(55,426.14',1

57,661.08

(1 1,656.84)

(218.40)

(8.%)

11,4U.02

(11,875.24)
(231.90)
(450.00)

Operating ProfiU(Lo3s) Before Working Capital Changes
Adjustments For :-

lncrease in other Financial Liabilities

CaBh Generated From Operations :-

Direct Taxes (Paid) / Refund Received ( Net )
Net Cash Flow From Operating Actlvltio6
(B) Cash Flow Frcm lnvestlng Actlvltles r

lnterest Received
Dividend Received

Net Cash Flow From lnve3ting Actlvltl6
(C) Cash Flow From Flnancing Activitlee :-

Changes in Share CaPital
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Net lncrease(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents :-

Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Closlng Balance of Cash a CeBh EquivalentB (Note 23)
Supplementary lnfo]metion :

341.06

(1,765.s6)

34,t.08

11,44.301
(45.41

1,470.74

23t.90
450.00
681.90

(788.84)
6,'150.13
5,36'1.29

(411.22)

(8.s4)
(420.16)

(0.60)
(420.76)

218.40

218.40

(202.36)
6,3s2.49
6,1s0.13

NIL NIL
Restricted Cash & Cash Equivalents

*,;-L qgat"-A
(Amit Ageruella, an{ing Dlrector)
DIN: 00338081

For & on behalf of Board of DirectoE

(Aditya Agarwal
DIN:00140683

This is the Cash Flow Statements refened to in our report of even date'

For and on behalf of
Raigeria & Associates
Chartered AccountanG

Registration No.3142tll E

q6Jo$

& cA Dibya Agarwal
Partner

Membershlp No. 304601

5*)tt"'n"a
(Santanu Kumar Hazra)

Company Secrotary

135A, B R B Basu Road

Kolkata - 700 001

Dated:2! i.lA.Y 2024



ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LTD.
STANDALONE STATEMEilT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3IST TARCH ZO24

(Amount in Rupees thousands,

Balance as at 31,2022
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year
Balanco as at ilarch 3,
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year
Balance as at iia ?ch g1 , 2O2d

No of Sharc6
18,99,980

18,99,980

18,99,980

18,999.80

18,999.80

18,999.80

B. EQUITY

Statutory Reserye SITitN
Capltal Reaerve (under 4SlC of RBI Retained Earnlng Compr€hen3ivo

lncome
80,267.89 1,U,484.78 5,09,324.44

(Amount an thousands)

Total

,077.117
Balance as at ilarch 31,2022
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors
Defened Tax for earlier years

Restated balance at the beginning of the previous reporting y(
Transfer ftom Retained Earning
Profifl(loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive lncome

11 q7l ( 11.749.97\
80,267.89 1,U,484.78

1,705.05
4,97,574.47

(1,706.05)
8,530.23

7,12,327.',14

8,530.23

Balance as at atch 31,2023
Changes in accounting policy or prior period enors
Restated talance at the beginning of the reporting period
Transfer from Retained Earning
ProfiU(loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive lncome
Balance as at Marchll,2024

80,267.89 1,36,190.83 5,04,398.65 7,20,857.37

80,267.89 1,36,190.83 5,04,398.65 7,20,857.37

(44,742.681

75.309.85

(44,742.68)
75,309.85

f,.L 1 rcf'f;R 7

Footnote: For purpose E nature of Other Equity, refer Note No. 8.0
For & on behalf of Board of Directors

ldr
(Amit Agarwatla, 1 -t/ ,::_ ..

For and on behalf of
Rajgaria & Associatee
Chartered Accountants

o.314241E

suJ "9

Partner

,'i,,
CA

0 5^JE" h,H,a.
(Santanu Kumar Hazra)
Company Secrctary

lng Dir€ctor)

Z g MA y Z0Z4 
irembershipNo.3(x601
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SUilITIARY OF SIGN]FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Abha Property Project Ltd. listed public Comparry domiciled in lndia & incorporated under the provision
of the erstu,hile companioes Act,1956 & is Ultimate Holding copmany of Abha Feno & Alloys Ltd &
Abha Refractories Ltd.

The Registered Office of the Company is situated at 29 Ganesh Chandra Avenue, Kolkata -7OOO13

of Compllance
These Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with lndian Accounting Standard (|ND-AS)
notified under section 13i! of the Cornpanies Acl, 2013 (The Act), Companies (lnclian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provision of the Act.

Basls of Preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments that are measured in terms of relevant lnd AS at fair values/
amortized costs at the end of each reporting period.

Financial Asssts and Liabiliticg
Financial assets and financial liabilities (financial instruments) are recognized when this unit of the
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measurcd at fair value. Transaction costs that are
direc{ly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be realised
or settled within operating cycle of the unit of the company which is generally taken as 12 month
otheruise these are classified as non- current.

The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at amortized cost, at Fair Value
Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or at Fair Value Through O,ther Comprehensive lncome (FVTOCI)

depends on the objective and conhactual terms to which they relate.
Classification of financial instruments are determined on initial recognition.

(i) Financlal ass€ts and financi.l liebilitios measurrd at Amortlzed Cost
Financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows are measured at amortized cost.
The financial a$ets and financial liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized
cost using Effecfive lnterast Rate (ElR) method.

(ii) Financial A$et at Falr value Through Other ComprEhens[ve ]ncome (FvTOcl)
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contrac'tual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dales to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. &rbsequent to initial r€cognition, they are m€asured at fair value and changes therein are
recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

,@KoAeh
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1. SUTIARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POL]CIES
(lli) Financial Assots or Liabiliti$ at Falr Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL,
Financial instruments which do not meet the criteria of amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss.

lnvestments: lnvestments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of each investment,
arrived at on the basis of market value in case of quoted shares & break up value as per last available
audited accounts in case of unquoted shares, considercd seperately is made in the accouflts unless
the same is considered to be temporary in nature.

Revenue Recognation: Revenue is recognised on transfer of significant risk & reward of ornership to
the buyer and so long as there is a reasonable assuran@ for its collection. lf at the time of raising of
claim, it is unreasonable to expect ultimate collec{ion, revenue collections are postponed. Dividend
income is recognized when right to receive the same is established. lnterest income is recognized on
time proportion basis taking into account the amount outslanding and rate applicable.

lncome & Expenditure: All items of income & expenses are accounted for on their accural to the
extent possible & unless otherwise stated. Periodical expenses viz insurance, taxes etc. are not
apportioned over the period but are charged as & when incuned.

Provision for Currcnt and D.fer?ed Tax: Provision for current tax is made after taking into
consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the lncome-tax Act, 1961. Defened tax
resulting from "timing difference" between taxable and accounting income is accounted for using the
tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantirrely enacted as on the balance sheet date. Defened
tax asset is recognised and canied fonrvard only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the
asset will be realised in future. Defened Tax Assets & Defened Tax Liability have been offset as they
relate to the same governing tax laws.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent AsseE: Provisions involving substantial degree
of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in
the fi nancial statements.

Cash Flows: Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and/or for items of income & expenses associated with
investing and financing activities. The cash flows from operating, investing & financing activities of the
company are segregated.

<olkah l'''6
*
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No,
Note PARTICULARS (Amount in Rupeea thousa nds)

2,0

AS AT
31.03.20?/.

AS Af
3't.03.2023

279.76

CASH Oil HAilD
BALANCES WITH BANKS
ln Cunent Accounh
ln Fixed Deposits

.t26.80
4,659.43

275.06

086.23
438.98

5,431.39 5,870.37

Fixed Deposits include Accrued interest
( Net of TDS , if any)

6.150r-

6.39

Note (Amount ln Rupees thousands )PARTICULARS
No. AS AT

31,03.2024
AS AT

31.03.2023

1,35,500.00
61,000.00

43,568.48

3.0
3.1 INVESTMENTATCO$ No.ofSharee Amount

Unouoted Eouitv Shares of Rs. 1O/- each
ln whollv owned Subsidiarv Comoanies

No.of ares Amount

Abha Feno Alloys Ltd.
Abha Refractories LE.
ln Associate Companies
Negus Diskibutorc Pvt. Ltd.
( See Footnote 1)

3.3 lnvestments Outside lndia
lnvestments Within lndia

1,35,50,000
61,00,000

1,35,500.00 1,35,50,OOO.OO

Gi,000.00 61,00,000.00

- 3,78,900.00

unouoted o. 1 % Non-convertibte. Redeemabte preference SE?Effiach
Abha Feno Alloys Ltd. 2,25,00,000 2,25,000.00 2,25,OO,OOO.OO

2,40,068.48

Abha Refractories Ltd 2,25,00,000 2 000.00 2,25,00,000.00
4,50,000.00

3.2 INVESTmENT lN UNOUOTED EOUTTY SHARES (itea3urod at FairVatue thrcuoh OCD
Eouity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Purbanchat Cement Ltd. 51,55,92t 1,U,2O7 A1
( See Footnote 1& 2)

2,54,171.49
2,54,171.49

1,4,207.01

-7.3tr-.firF
7,90,707.04 7 ,48,411.46
7,90,707.04 7,48,411,48

Footnote: 1) ln terms of Order dated 18th Septenber,2o23 passed by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata
Bench,M/s Negus Distrinutors Pvt Ltd. was amalgmated with M/s Subh Drishti Consultants Private Limited which was
ultimately amalgmated with M/s Purbanchal Cement Ltd. w.e.f. 1st April, 2022. According to the Share exchange ratio
in the Scheme of Anangement, approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal,Kolkata Bench, 51,55,927
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each in M/s Purbanchal Cement ltd. have been alloted to the Company, against its holding of
3,78,900 Equity shares in Negus Distributors Pvt Ltd.

2) Since the audited accounts of M/s Purbanchal Cement Ltd. for the year ended 31st March,2024 are not available, the
fairvalue of shares in Purbanchal Cement ltd. has been arrived at as per last audited accounB for the year ended 31st
March,2o23 redrawn after giving effect of amaEmation as stated in Footnote t herein above

I(oItaa
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PARTICU

T
Payme nt of Taxes (Net of Provisions)

AS AT
31.03.2024

68.28
68.28

--

Amount in Ru thousands
AS AT

31.03.2023

21.U
21.U

thousands)

LARSNote
No.
4.0

(Amount in Rupoea
AS AT

Note
No.

5.0

PARTICU LARS AS AT
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

42.50
42.50Expenses Payable 383.56

383.56

nt in Rupees thousands)

AS AT
$.o3.m?A

AS AT
Note
No.

PARTICULARS

6.0 FF
Liabilities
ln respect of Timing difference in lncome

Capital Gain

Footnote: Defened Tax Asset in

respect of business losses available for
set off has not been recognised due to
uncertainity of realisation.

25,328.71
25,t28.71:

31.03.2023

14,683.76

__14,68e29_

187.534li,0.21

c
I Kolkata

a
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nt in

31.03.2024
ASAT

31.03.2023
NEII!
No.
7,0
7.'.|

No. of Shatcc No. of Shares

19

18,99,980

Amount

000.00Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Eouitv Shares of Rs. 10/- each
At the beginning of the year
Changes during he year
At.$e end.of the year

Swati Agarwalla
Otthid illerchants Pvt. Ltd
Tirupatl mansion Pvt. Ltd.
FfrE]l

Prasad Agarwalla HUF
Basant Kumar Agarualla HUF

Swatl Agarualla
Site Agarwalla

Equity Shares bought back

Shares allotted as fully paid up
pursuant to contract without payment
being received in cash

Shares allotted as fully paid up by way
of bonus shares

1 1 1 rl 1

7.2

7,3

7.5

I1 18,999.80

18,99.980 18,999.80 18.99.980 18,999.80

There were no shares held by holding company or ultimate holding company and/or their subsidsiaries/associates
during he year.

7.4 SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF SHARE CAPITAL AS AT THE END OF YEAR
No. of Shar€s

I-l
% held
35.99%

5.0506

6.33%
9.370/o

25.26%

No. of Shares
6,83,730

96,000
,1,20,u0

1,78,000
4,79,840

% held
35.99%

5.050/6

6.330/6

9.37%
25.260/0

o/o held
3.610/0

4.2'.tYo

35.99%
o.260h
0.260/0

5.05%
25.260/0

No. of Shares

Nit

Nil

1,20,W

1,79,U0

mlrflsrirnYl

Date
Nil
NI

.EIi]

1

% held No. of Shares
3.6{06 68,500
1.21% 80,0s0

35.99% 6,83,730
o.28% 5,000
O.28Yo 5,000
5.05% 96,000

25.26o/o 4,79,U0
Footnoto: ln case, where any shareholder is holding more than 5% of share capital in one year but less than 5% of
share capital in another year, the information about shareholding for the year in which the shareholding is less than 506

has not been furnished.

7.6
There was no change in promoters holding during the year

7,7 'lhe company has only one class of shares viz. equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each
shareholder is eligible for one vote per share & is entitled to prc.rata dividend, if any, declared on equity shares. ln the
event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after
disfibution of all prebrential amounts, in the proportion to their shareholdings.

7.A During the year ended , the Authorised Equity Share Capital of the Company has been increased from R3. 19,000 in

thousand divided into 19,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 1,14,000 in thousands divided into 'l ,14,00,000
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each in terms of Resolution passed in Annual General Meeting held on 25th August,2023

7,9 lnformation about movement in aggregate number of shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the
date at which Balance Sheet is prepared:

No. of Shares Date
Nit

Nil
Nil
Nit

Nitt$u

?e [,IA 074

Nit



nt in Ru
AS AT

31.03.202.1 3't.03.2023]ET

8.0
8.1

8.2

8.3

At the beginning of the year
Changes during the year
At the end of the year

At the beginning of the year
Transfer from Surplus during the year

At the end of the year

At the beginning of the year
Deffered Tax for Earlier year

f:E 80,267.89

1,34,4U.78
706.05

80,267.89

1,36,190.83

1,36,190.83
1

1,36,190.83

5,09,324.44
11,749.97

ProfiU (Loss) fior the year
4,97,574.47

8,530.23
5,06,104.70

Aooropriation durino the vear
Transfer to Statutory Reserve
At the end of the year

706.05
5,04,398.65

At the beginning of the year
ProfiU (Loss) for the year
At the end of the year

8.5 NaturE & Purpose of Other Equity
i) Capital Reserve represents amount created on account of amalgmation in earlier year.
ii) Statutory reserve represents amount transfered as required under Section 45-lC of RBI Act
iii) Retained Earning represents the undistributed profrtUamount of accumulated earnings of the Company.
iv) Other Comprehensive lncome represents the balance in equity relating to gain/losses on re-measurement of
lnvestments, net of taxes if any. This will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.Any realised gain/loss on
sale of investments is transfeered to retained eaming

1

nt in
ENDED

31.03.2021 31.03.2023

Gain on Restatement of Non Current lnvestments ( Net)
Dividend
lnterest on Fixed Deposits
lnterest on lncome Tax Refund

23r.90

11,656.E4

218.40
0.8s

1

"(o/lrata I
2 ! i,lAi 'itz4



m]

YEAR
31.03.2024 31.03.2023No.

r0.0
Salary & Allovrance 15s.00 130.00

ilFf'n 'l

tn

NDED
No. 3'1.03.2021 31.03.2023
I1.0

Advertisement
Depository Service Charges
Filing Fee
Listing Fee
Legal & Professional Fee
Payment To Auditors
Rates & Taxes
Directors' Sitting Fee
Loss on R6tatement of Non Current Investments ( Net)
Demat Charges
Miscellaneous Expenses

{I.I DETAILS OF PAYTENTTOAUD]TORS
For Statutory Audit Fee
For Certification
Reimbursment of GST

!Ef'n

753.7?
15:!.40
507.76

63.65
5.75

68.00
58,342.98

0.59
t1.80

25.50
3.15

12.85
21.24
19.56
47.20

125.31
42.00

5.75

1.77
6.39

282.07

30.00
12.00

ln
D

No. 31 31.03.2023

8,530.23

18,99,980
4.49

1

-Net ProfiU(Loss) attributable to Shareholders
-Weighted Average number of Equity

Shar$ outstanding as at the end of the
year

-Basic E Diluted Eaming per Share (RsrP)

144.,742.681

18,99,980
(23.s5)

KoI&ata

"a
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f'] thousands
YEAR ENDED

31.03.2023
v=mr{Ilif{,

?tftg*trPnNo.

1

13.1

(To The Extent Not Provided Foo

13.2 g@Ei@eEtr
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

in Ru
NETE! YEAR ENDED

31.03.2023No. t1.03.2024

14.1
11.2

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

Note
No.
15.0 Additional regulatory lnformation rcqulrsd by Schedule lll of Companles Act,20l3
15.1 The Company does not have any relationship with struck off company u/s 248 of Companies 4ct,2013
15,2 The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause 87 of section 2 of the Companies

Act,2013 read with Companies (Restriction on Number of layers ) rules 2017.

15.3 Utilization of borrowed funds & Share Premium: The company has no borrowed funds & has not utilised its Share
Premium during the year

15.4 The company has not been declared as a Wilful Defaulter by any Bank or financial 
'nstitution 

or other lender.

15,5 There are no charges required or satisfaction thereof which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies
beyond the statutory period.

15.6 The Company has not been sanctioned nor availed any working capital facilities by banks requiring it to file quarterly

returns or statements with the banks.

15.7 No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

Kolkata
r.-f-

1q@,,'
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Note
No.

ln thou3ands

16.0
16,l List of

Associate Com
Key Management Personnel

rclatred partiB with whom tranGactions haye taken place during the year:Subsidiary Company Abha Refractori6 Ltd.
Feno Ltd.

Vishal
Sumit

Distributorc Footnote 2

- Director
- Director
- Director & CFO

Salan Kumar Khartla - lndependent Dircctor ( Upto 29th Mey,2O23)
Ram6h Kumar Poddar - lndependent DiBctor (Upto 29th May,2023)
Mandeop Kaur Jaiswal - lndependent Dircctor ( w.e.f 2gth ilay,2o23l
Ayushl Khaitan - lndependent Dirrctor ( w.o.f 29th May,2023)
Santanu Kumar Hazra

Enterprises over which Key NII
Management Personnel & their
rclatives have significant infl uence

Relatives of Key Management Nil
Personnel

16.2 Detalb of transaction with related 3{.03.2024
Amount

Trasaction during Outstanding as at

31.03.2023

Transaction AmountOutstanding
the year the vear end durinq the vear as at the year end

Sanatanu Kumar Hazra

Ayushi Khaitan
Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal

Abha Ferro Alloys Ltd

Abha Reftactories Ltd

I 1 130.00 1

Srnil

ZtFf'Iil

1)Transactions only during the period of existence of relationship have been disclosed hereinabove. Also in cases
where relationship ceased to exist as at the end of the year, balances outstanding, if any, from such parties have not
been disclosed.

2) ln terms of Order dated 18th September,2o23 passed by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata

Bench,M/s Negus Distrinutors Pvt Ltd. was amalgmated with M/s Subh Drishti Consultants Private Limited which
ultimately amalgmated with M/s Purbanchal Cement Ltd. w.e.f. 1st April, 2022. HoMeuet, the order was received in
September 2023 , hence M/s Negus Dbtributors Pvt Ltd. ceased to be associate Company.

NoG
No.
17.0

Standard 17 is not applicable.

2 9 MA \', 2024

The Company is an investrnent @mpany operating in lndia only & as such segment reporting as defined in Accounting

,@



Note
No.
8.0 As required terms of1

18 of Company-

taking ComPanY (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016', a schedule containing required infu rmation
lmportant Non - Deposit
is enclosed seParately.

Note
No.

.0
This section gives an ovewiew of the significance of financial instruments for the Group and provides additional

information on consolidated balance sheet items that contain financial instruments. The debils of significant accounting

policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses
ara raenani<ad in racne.J .,rf F^nh nla<c 

^f 
Fin2n^ial Aqaal Fihanaial I iahilih, ahal Fdr rih, lnstn tmenl erc rliqnlneed in

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUTENTS Note No: AS AT ASAT
31,03.2024 31.03.2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents
lnvestments
Total Financial Assets Measurcd at Amortised Cost

Other Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabiliti$ Measursd at Amorti6ed Coat

2
3

5,361 .29
.04

6,150.13
7
7

7 11.4ts

5 42.50
42

No.

The
tofi

Company's financial liabilities comprise capital and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is
nance the company's operations. The company's financial assets include other receivables, cash and cash

The Company is exposed to market risk. The company's senior management oversees the management of the risks.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees to policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:
ilarket Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk mainly comprises of risk, such as raw material price risk. Financial instruments affeAk Oy
market risk include FVTPL investmenE, etc.

The table provides undiscounted cash flow towards non- derivative financial liability into relevant maturities based on

Payable withln I
year

Payable ln morc
than 1 year Totel

42.50

SFFr]S

As at 3lST MARCH 2023
Other Financial Liabilities
As at 3lST MARCH 2024
Other Financial Liabilities

42.50

-'- :", ':
21,.i.i.".' ' '

:ii,--'

,:.i

Ff:FHl

2 9 Mr \' 2024



TETI!]
No.
21.0 CAPITALi'ANAGEIENT

For the purpose of the Company'3 capital management, capital includ$ lssued Equity Capital, Capital Reserve and all
other Equity Reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the companys capitat
management is to maximise the Share holder value. The Company manages its capitial structure and makes
adjustments in line with changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares or sale asseE to
reduce debt. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
The company includes within net debt, interest bearing long term loans and bonowings less cash and cash equivalents.

For the Year ended

No. %age Variance
3t.03.2024 31.03.2023

(a) Capital to risk - weighted assets ratio

Numerator : Paid UP CaPital
genomllalgl : Aggreted Risk Weighted Assets

FE6i--or variai&: Not Applicable as there is no credit, Market or operational risk

(b) Tier-1 CRAR

Numerator : Shareholders' Equity

Denominator : Aggreted Risk Weighted Assets

FE6-n ot v"ri"i&: Not Appticab-te as there is no credit, Market or operational risk

(c) Tier-2 CRAR
Numerator : Shareholders' Equity + Supplgmentary capital (Provision for Loan Loss' Revaluation Reserve'

Undisclosed ReseNe etc.)

Denominator : Aggreted Risk Weighted

Reason of Variance: Not Applicable as
Assets
there is no credit, Market or operational risk

-30.39 -77.U%
(d) Liquidity Coverage Ratio' ' 

Numerator : Liquid Assets i.e. Cash & Cash Equivalents

Denominator : Total Net Cash Flows

E-eason ot vatiance: Not Applicable ....,:

7 a i'i,i', ?024
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No, PARTICULARS

Current Tax
Defened Tax

Tax Expense Total
Reconciliation of estimated lncome tax expense at lndian
statement of Profit & Loss

Profit from before income tax expense
lncome Tax rate'

Deffened Tax on Unabsorbed Loss not recognized
lncome tax expenae in Statement of Profit & Loss

AS AT AS AT
31.03.202331.03.2024

fl4.683.76) 2,933.79

AS AT AS AT
31.03.202331.03.2024

25,168

NA

11,4U.02
25.168

2,885.26

(14,9s6.45) 0.45
48.08

933.79

ncome expense reported in

Estimated lncome Tax Expense
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected lncome
tax expense to reported lncome tax expense

Permanent difference - Otherc

2

Note
No.

ULARS

Previous year's figures have been wherever necessary, to conform to the current year

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Q*.r^g

6r*1,.&, t,y. n /4, .tt

For and on behalf of
Rajgaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

No.314241E

Dibye Aganrral
Partner

ilembe]3hip No. 304601

135A, BRBBasuRoad
Kotkata - 700 001

'29 MA'Y2024

a Q""-&
(Santanu Kumar Hazra)1 DIN:00140683



T{OTE NO. {

2 BEok-up of Loens and Advances lncluding Bills Receivabales (other than those includod in (a)
2.1 Secured

2.2 Unsecured

3 Br€ak-up of 13a3ed Assets and Stock on HhE and Other Assets counflng towards AFC ectivities: Amount
3.1 Lease Assets including Lease Rentab under Sundry DebtoB:

3.11 Financial Lease

3.12 Operating Lease

3.2 Stock on Hire including Hire Charges under Sundry Debtors:
3.21 Assets on Hire

3.22 Reposse$ed Assets
3.3 Other Loans counting tourards AFC activities

3.3'l Loans where Assets have been repossessed
3.32 Loans olher then above

boloAmount

Parflculatr tn
A Li.bilitier 3ide:

I Loana and adrancas avalled by
1.1 Debentures:

1.'l 1 Sedlred
1.12 Unsecured

(other than falling within the meaning of public d8posits)
1.2 Defened CrediE
1.3 Term Loans

1.4 lnter-Corporate Loans and Borro$ring
'1.5 Commercial Paper

inclusive1l:l:f*1 lnbllstof butaccrued not OverdueAmount

1.6

B Arlotr ilde:

Cunrnt lnvo3tnents Term inwstmentg
Un{uoted mErrll UnQuoted

4 Brcek-up of lnvestmentr (Amount Outstanding):

4.01

4.O2

4.03

4.U
4.05
4.8

Equity Shares
PreErence Shares

Debentures and Bonds
Units of Mutual Funds

Goremment Sec rities
OtherB

2,40,068.48

4,50,000.00

Secured Unsecured Totel5.1 Related Parties
5.11 Subsidiaries
5.12 Companies in the Same Group
5.13 Other Related Parlies

5.2 Other than Related Parties

net ofabove

Total

5 Borrow€r GEup-wiae Cla$lflcation of AseotB Financed a3 in (21 !I

MarkeuBreak-
up/Fair Value or

NAV
Book Value (net

16J8,A22.20

1 .04

6,/16,500.00

1 .u

6.1 Related Parties
6.1'l Subsidiaries
6.12 Companies in the Same Group
6.13 Other Related Padies

6.2 Other than Related Parties

Total

6 lnvestor group-wlse cla$ificatlon of all lnw3tm€nb as in (/+) above

17 7

Amount7 Other lnfomatlon
7.1 Gross Non-Performing Assets

7. 1 'l Related Parties
7.12 Other than Rela{ed Parties

7.2 Net Non-Performing Assets
7.21 Related Parties
7.22 Other than Related Parlies

,o

0 47.3 Assets in satisfaction of Debl



Bank Balances
- Bgnk of Baroda, park Street,

HDFC Bank, Fort_Mumbai,

Pavment & provision for lncome Tax
4.Y.2023-24
4.Y.2024-25

A/c No.
77740200003153
50200025440695

tFsc
BKDN0910300
HDFC000006o

lncome
2,25,000.00

31.03.2024

TDS
22,500.00

5;500:00
30,000.00
20,500.00

7,500.00
12,515.00

5,000.00
2,500.00
7;500:00

4,26,107.03
690.45 __rcru.48

Payment provision 
Net

u,707.o0

Exoenses pavable
TDS Payabte ( paid on 19.04.24Rs 32,657 & Rs 2050 on 03.05.24 )Professional Fees payable 

:

A.K. Gutgutia & Associates ( Net of TDS Rs SOO)
poyet & Associates euarter ende a Marat ic
lntelligent Money
Raj Consultancy
Raj Consuttancy
Kotak Securities

Director Sitting Fees -Ayushi Khaitan
Director Sitting Fees -Mandeep Kaur
Salary Payble -Santanu Hazra CS
Auditors Rernuneration Fayable

For Statutory Audit_ sFS ( Net of TDS 2500)
For Statutory Audit- CFS ( Net of TDS 1000j
For Certilication

4,500.00
3,000.00

1,62,000.00
34,650.00
60,715.00

590.00
9,000.00
9,000.00

't5,000.00

Dividend lncome
Abha Feno Afloys Ltd
Abha Refractories Ltd

Salarv Paid
Santanu Hazra

Deoository Serulce Charoes
C.D.S.L. ( Net of Refund received Rs 6g8)
N.S.D.L.

Listino Fee

Calcutta Stock Exchange -Right lssue Fee
Late Filing Fee
Calcutta Stock Exchange - Annual

Professional Fees
R B M Associates - Secretariat Audit Report
Ayushi Khaitan - Consrltancy
Raj Consultancy - TDS Return
Raj Consultancy - Accounting
Raj Consultanry - Consultancy for right issue
Raj Consultanry - i.Tax
Raj Consultancy - ROC
lnternalAudit Fees- Goyel & Associates
Roshni K Gupta & Associates- Scrutinizer Report
Roshni K Gupta & Associate+ Secretarial Compliance
Roshrti K Gupta & Associates- Stock Exchange compliance Jan 22.Dec 23
Softonix- Website Development
lntelligent Money- for Right lssue

Maheshwari Datamatics P\rt. Ltd. - Evoting
Equifax Credit lnformation

Dircctors Sitting Fees

Director sitting Fees -Ayushi Khaitan
Direstor sitting. Fees -Mandeep Kaur

22,500.o0
9,000.00

18,900.00 3,83,562.00

Net
2,02,500.00

1,65,000.00 1,65,000.00

9,932.00
10,620.00 20.5s2.00

88,500.00
17,700.00
47,200.00 1.53.400.00

12,000.00
10,000.00

76,015.00
3,000.00

15,000.00
5,000.00

3,54,000.00
19,470.00
13.275.00 5,07,760.00

34,000.00
34,000.00 68,000.00



ABHA PROPERW PROJECT LTD'

Detaits of AfiilEEithJhatf vear ended 31'a3'2a24 t

Rates & Taxes
Profession Tax
Trade,l-icence

BreakuP Value of lnvestments :

As On

Purbanchal Cement
Ltd. 31.03.23

Related Parties ( Non NBFC)

Abha-FerroAlloYs Ltd. 3{'03'24'
Abha Reflactories Ltd. 31'A3'24

Prcference Shares:
Abha Ferro AlloYs Ltd.

Abha Refractories Ltd'

Total

Deferred Tax calculation

2,500.00
3.250.00 5'750-99-

No.of Shares Cost Total M' Value Loss
B.V/M.V

per Share

27.97

57.80
63.22

10.00
10.00

Face value

10.00
m

Cost Balance sheet

4,35,68,480 14,42,07,045

Difference Tax @ 25'168% OCI

(10,06,38,565) (2,s3,28,714'OO) (2,53'28',7{4'00)

1,35,50i000,
61,00;000

2,25,00,000 22,50,00,000 22,50,00,000

4,60,214.00

10.00
10.00

13,55;00i000
6,10;00,000

78,31,98,048
38,ffi,24,',!54

10.00
10.00

Profit & Loss

1,46,83,759.00
1;46,83,759,@

On Restatement of EquitY Shares

Less: OPening Deferred Tax

Net Deferred Tax Liability

On B/f Business Loss - Deferred Tax asset not recognized

Kolkata



I Details of Accounts for the half vear ended 31.03.2024

COMPUTATION OFINCOi'E FOR THE A.Y.2O24.25
INCOME FROU BUSINESS

ProfiU (Loss) Before Tax as per Profit & Loss Account
Add: l-oss on'Restatement of lnvestment
Less: Dividend lncome

INCOME FROU OTHER SOURCE
Dividend lncome ( 30.09.23)

Total lncome
Rounded Off

Tax-on,Above:,@25%
Add: Education cess @ 4%

Hence Tax Payable
LESS PREPAID TAXES :

TDS on lnterest
REFUNDABLE

Net Credlt
26,80,102

28,512
4,37,53,582
3,47,74,220

r'7
8.30,21.013

(5,94,26,438),
5,83;42;973.00

4,50,000.00 5,78,92,973.00
(15,33,46s)

4,50,000
(10,83,46s)

(10,83,470)

SetO,ff Ne!
26,80J02

28,512
4,37,53,582
3,47,74,220

68.284
(68,284)

Note:
crcdit in rcspect of MAT avaitabte to be set- off against futurc tax liabitity

A.y.2011-12 w-* ,ffi set'off earlier':,

4.Y.2413-14 - 28,s12
4.Y.2017-18 15,37,349 4,52,90,931
A.Y.2018-19 22,63,580 3,70,37,800
4.Y.2022-23 - 17,84,597

8,30.21.01

2) Business Loss Carried'Forward
AY 2020-21
AY 2021-22
AY 2022-23
AY 2023-24
AY 2024-25

2,87,544.00
1,40,184.00
1,35,326.00
1,82,049.00

10,83,465.00

_192q@99_

(Extended Due date)
(Extended Due date)

'Return Filed on
14.02.21
14:03.22
03.11.22
30.10.23
U/s 139(1)



t

RAJGARIA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

DI

To
The Board of Directors,
IWs. Abha Property Project Limited
29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue,
Kolkata - 700 013

As required under Non Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

and on the basis of information available & explanations given to us, we report on the matters specified in

paragraph3&4asbelow:

Para 3(A)
i. ft" Company is presently engaged in the Business of Non Banking Financial Institution. The

company is meeting the twin frincipal Business criteria (Financial Asset/Income Pattern) as laid down vide

the Bant,s p."r, .j."re dated April 08, 1999, and directions issued by DNBR, The company is holding a

Certificate of Registration (CoR) No. B-05.06627 ftomthe Reserve Bank of lndia .

ii. On the basis of Balance Sheet & Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31't March 2024, in

our opinion the Company is entitled to continue to hold such cenificate of Registration'

iii. The company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid.down in Master Direction -
Non Banking Financial company- Non- Systemically Important Non- Deposit taking company (Reserve

Bank) Directions, 2016.

Para 3(C)
i. The Board of Directors have duly passed a resolution for the non-acceptance of the'opublic Deposits"

within the meaning of paragraph 2(lXxiD 
"rN"_r- 

Banking Financial companies acceptance of Public

O.p*itr (Reserve 6*f.fni6ttions, iiig for the financial year 31't March' 2024'

ii. The Company has not accepted *y a.potit f*q ,.h: puUti. during the year ended 31st March 
'2024'

iii. The company has complied with the prudentiar 
-t 

iorr relating to income recognition, accounting

standards, asset crassification and prorrisioning for bad _and 
doubtful d"btr as applicable to it in terms of

Non-Banking Financial company - No;-ay#mically tmportant Non-Deposit taking company (Reserve

Bank) Directions, 2016.

For Rajgaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 31 4241D

Kolkata; l[H June,2024
UDIN : 243046018KA8V28591

a &6'^f
(CA Dibya Agarwal)

Partner

Membership No.304601

135A, B. R. B. Basu Road, 2"d Floor, Kolkata- 700 001; Phone: 22429107



INDI Raigaria t Aasoclet r
Chartei€d Accountent3

We have eamined the books of accounts & other records of Abha Property Project Ltd. for the financial year

ending March 3lst, 2024. On the basis ofthe infornetion submitted to us,we certifr the following :

31. ParticulalB
1

a
Name of the company
Certificate of Registration No.
Registered office Addross 29 Gan6sh Chandra Avenue, Kolkata-

700 013
4 office Address Ganesh Chandra Avenue, Koll(ata-

013

The company has be€n classified by RBI as (lnvestment
Company / Loan Company / AFC / NBFC-MFI / NBFC-
Factor / IFC / IDF- NBFC)

lnvestment Gompany

Net Owned (in Rs. Crore) 20.10

Calculation - As
Assets (in Rs. Crore) tpw)

pafrem:{Calcrlation - As per
(in terms of RBI Pross Release 1998-99/1269

a) % of Financial Assets to Total Assets
b) % of Financial lncome to Gross lncome
(NBFC-Factor / NBFC-MFI / AFC / IFC may also report

99.31%
%

separately below)
6 Whether the company was holding any Public Depo6its, No

on arch 31,2024? f YeS, the amdnt in Rs. Crore

10 Has the company transfened a sum not less lhen 2oo/o I,t

its Net Profit for the year to Reserve Fund?(in terms
sec 45-lc of the RBI Act, 1934).

0

't1 Has the company received any FDI?

lf Yes, did the company comply with the minimum
tftt

norms for the FDI?

12 lf the company is classified a6 an NBFC-Factori

a) % of Factoring Assets to Total Assets
b) % of Factoring lncome to Gross lncome

t,TA

Ltd.

3

o

7

Contd....

-4:I. ..-. -..r-,r-:.,. .

,8

I 2 iui\r 2024

135A, B. R. B. Basu Road, 2nd Floor, Kolkate - 700 001; Phone: 22429107



INDI Ralg.rla E A'rocleies
Cher&r€d Account nts

Eq

sr.
't3 lf the company is classified as an NBFC-MFI;

% of Qualifying Assets to Net Assets
lrcfer to Notifrcation DNBS.PD.No.234 CcM (US) 2011 dated

02, 2011]

tm

1 4 If the company is classified as an AFC;
of Advances given for creation of physical / real assets

€conomic adivity to Total Ass€B
0/6 of income generated out of these assetg to Total
lncome

tm

15 company is classified as an NBFC-lFC
% of lnfrastructure
lf the

to Total Assets
16 any takeover/acquisition of control/

change in shareholding/ Management during the year
required prior approval from RBI?

(ptease refer to per DNBR (PD) CC. No.

Has there been

01 001 DO1 15- datedtd 09 5201 on theJuly subjact
for details)

The company ha3 applled
surrender of CoR as ln the oplnlon

the company l3 of
naturB ot Corc lnvestment

hence no prlor approval of RBI

r€quli€d for such change, if any.

ln terms of paragraph 3 of Mastor Direction DNBS.PPD.o3/66.15.00112016-17 dated september 29, 2016, a
separate report to the Board of Directors of the c.mpany has teen made.
\Atre have read and undeGtood paragraph 5 of Master Direction DN8s.ppD.03166.15.00112016-17 deted
September 29, 2016.

For and on behalf of
RaJgaria & Associatos
Chartercd Accountants
Regbt6tion 0.314241E

CA Dibya Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.

&

1354, B. R. B. Basu Road,2nd Ftoor, Kotkata - 700 OO1; phone:2242 glOT



DI
Rajgaria & Associates
Chartercd Accountants

m

NET OIi'TTED FUND AS ON 31.03.2024
ANI{EXURE.A

!i'ra

12 JUN 2074

Item Code As on 31.03.2024S!. No. Particulars of ltems

1.901111

are compulsory ttzequity

Reserves:

preference2

3
,113a. Reserues
tt4b. Share Premium
115 8.03c. Capital Reserve (representing surplus on sale of assets)

116d. ReserveDebenture
Lt7A Capital Redemption Reserve
118 53.50f. Credit balance of P & L Accounts

13.62119Free Reserves ReserveF]

fFItl4 Reserve
t{0
121Accumulated of Loss5
t22Balance of Deferred Revenue6
1237 Defferred Tax Assets (Net)
124I Assets

I
77130

10
t4ta.

INVESTMENT IN SHARES OF.:

Owned Subsidiaries

in the same

VALUE
of the

142b.
64.65143c. t4other MFCsd,

PURCHASEIDISGOUNTED, INTER CORPORATE

Al{D LEASE FINANCE, GFs WTH :

INCLUDINGLOANS AND ADVANGES

11

14sSubsidiaries of the
in the same

Owned Subsidiaries
41

a.
t46
147

b.

c.
140

m

[I,140

1

135A, B. R. B. Basu Road, 2nd Floor' Kolkata - 700 001; Phone: 22429107



G.lND]A
Ralgarie & A$oclats!

CharGrcd Aeeountants
ABHA PROPERTY PRO.'ECT LIiIITED

ASSET rt{COf,E PATTERN AS ON 31.03.2024
ANiIEXURE. B

Thg Calculations ar6 as under:

(A) FII{ANCIAL ASSETS
lnvestments

Totat
NON FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash And Cash Equivatenb
Cunent Tax Ass€ts

Amount(Rupees In Cmre)
79.07

aga
99.31%

79.O7 E03l%-(A)
(B)

(c)

Totel

Totrl

(B)

(A+8,

(c)

(o)

(c+D)

0.69%

100.00%

65.9r%
65.91%

34:0E%

100.00%

0.54
0.01

0.68%
0.01%

Fll{At{ctAL t cofE
Dividend lncome

Tot l
NON FII{ANCIAL INCO E

lnErest on Fixed Deposits
lntBrest ftom lT Rofund

Tot l

Totel

0.55

79.62

0.05
0.0s

0.02

0.07

(D)

0.02
0.00

33.96%
0.13%

&
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of
ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Abha Property Project Limited ("the

company"), its Subsidiaries and its Associates (together referred to as "the Group") which comprise the

Balance Sheet as at 31s March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows

for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in

India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st Marchr 2O24,its Profit and its Cash Flows forthe
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143 (10)

of the Companies Ac! 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirernents and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the following:
i) Paragraph (a) under 'Principle of Consolidation' in Note no. I - "Significant Accounting Policies" which
states that in the absence of information in respect of net assets and profiV(loss) of the Associate as on the

date of acquisition of shares of associate, Goodwill or Capital Reserue as the case may be, on consolidation,
has been calculated on the basis of audited financial statements available for the year ended immediately
preceding the date of transaction in the shares of Associate company.

ri) Paragraph (c) under 'Principle of Consolidation' in Note no. I - "Significant Accounting Policies"
which states that difference of cost of investment in share of Associate and share of net asset in the
Associate is identified and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as Goodwill or Capital
Reserve, as the case may be with Investment in share of associate.

In our opinion, the above principles constitute a departure from the compliance of Accounting Standard-
23 - Accounting for Investment in shares of Associates in consolidated financial statements", impact of
which on the consolidated financial statements could not be ascertained and our opinion is not qualified
on these matters.

,,,3s

2E ?i.z4l{A

135A, B. R. B. Basu Road, 2nd Floor, Kolkata- 700 001; Phone: 22429107



RAJGARIA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

INDI

-2-

Statements-3 1.03.2024 Contd...

Information other than the Financial Statements & Auditor,s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is resporlsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report etc. but
does not include the financial statements and our Auditor's Report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statement or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibility of Management for consolidated Financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includei the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to iease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Roard of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Contd...
,-'' i 
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Auditors'Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or elror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identiff and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from effor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe override of intemal control.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143 (3) (i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a mateial uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modiff
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated frnancial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of the identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements

,d8a
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We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and signifrcant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identiff during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit af the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order"), issued by the Central

Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,2013, we give a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order, to the extent applicable, as under:

xxi) There are no qualification or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their report on
Companies (Auditors Reporf) Order 2020 of the companies included in consolidated financial
statements

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept by the company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Proflt and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards(Ind As) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 20 14.

..t Cp$td...
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e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31st
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company & of subsidiary
companies incorporated in India and the reports of the statutory auditors of the subsidiary

companies, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India are disqualified as on

31't March,2024,from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 Q) ofthe Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

company andthe operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure 'A'
whictr ii based on th" auditors'reports of the companies & its subsidiary companies incorporated in

India.

g. No managerial remuneration has been paid during the year &provisions of Section 197 read with

schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the company.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

(r) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position

other than those, is any, already disclosed in the financial statements.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the ComPanY.
(iv) (a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief no funds

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including

foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whetheE directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons

or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has further represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beHee no

funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities

("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

,.;--;-.,.. 
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For Rajgaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 314241E
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, (CA Dibya Agarwal)

Partner
Membership No.304601

Statements-3 1.03.2024Contd...

(c)Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice flrat has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

(v) No dividend was declared or paid during the year by the Company requiring compliance with
section 123 of the Act

(vi)Based on our examination which included test check, we report that the company has migrated,
during the year, to 'Tally Edit Log' software & has thereafter maintained its books of accouniusing
the said accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. Furthei
during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit iiail feature being
tampered with.

Further, as proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicabte from
April l, 2023,reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit & Auditors; fiutes, Z0l4 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for
the year ended March 31,2024.

Kolkata; 29tu May,2024
UDIN : 2 430 460IBKABVI652 9 -ry'

.. .:.....- .

1 35A, B. R. B. Basu Road, 2d Floor, Kolkata - 700 001; phone: 2242 glOT



RAJGARIA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

INDI

31.03,2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) sub --section 3 of Section 14il of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act')

0pinion

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Abha Property Project
Limited ('the holding company') and its subsidiary companies incorporated in lndia, as at 31st March
2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on the
date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 3ltt March 2023, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the
Guidance Note on audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the Company's Policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and ertors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation ofreliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,20l3.

Auditorc' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') and the standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
lntemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
rEporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
res,ects' 

.1-1 'contd""
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Abha Propertv Proiect Limited -Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditors Report on

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud and error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the company's assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transaction
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of the Management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Rajgaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 3142414E

Kolkata; 29th May,2024
UDIN : 2430 460[BKABVI652 9
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AS AT AS AT

31.03.2023TITfi! 31.03,2021

Flnancial Asset3
cash and Caeh Equivalents
Other Bank Belances
lnvestments
Other Financial Assets
Non Financlal Assett
Current Tax Assets (Net)

TOTAL ASSETS

Flnancial
Other Financial Liabilities
Non Flnancial Llabilities

Defened Tax Liabilities (Net)

Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

{03.91 17,46,829.36

28,403.44

14,19,203.67
81 941.48 15,29,548.59

564.92

2
3
1
5

6

12,792.69

16,32,112.73
7

403.12
17

{55.58

2,15,927.52

18,999.80
1.58 ,1s,30,841.38 13 368.56

__J7_A7_,ru.48._

1 1

7 120.1'l

1,87,625.04

13,42,368.36

-mrfi3t-

3

t-l

1

1

11ir0

Slonlficant Accounti ;rn 1

c

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements.

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
For & on behalf of Board of Directors For and on behalf of

R.igeria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

4.^^tu
Resistration No.3l424l E

(Amlt "!DNFIFE[trN
CA Dibya AsanYal

Partner
ilembeBhip No. 304601

a
6 6" lE lh" S-6',

Kumar Haza)
Companv Seclrtary

l35A,BRBBasuRoad
Kolkata - 700 001
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(Amount ln Rupees Thousandsl
PARTICULARS Itrffi YEAR ENDED

31.03.202'l
YEAR ENDEO

31.03.2023,"lI'I
tNcorf,E

Other lncome

Employee Benefit Expenses
Other Expenses

PROFTT(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

11 31,1O7.52 17
17

77
77TT frl

193.5012
13 1

155.50
423.13
578.63

7, 4

1

fr:rx
Cunent Tax
For Earlier Years
Deffened Tax

Share of ProfiU(Loss) of Associates

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
a)ltem that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss

- lncome Tax relating to (a) above
b)ltem that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss
- lncome Tax relating to (b) above
Other Comprehensive lncome (a+b)

w)

VALUE OF R3.tor- EACH
14

{,730.00 726.00
4.30

156.441 2 2 884.74

14,193.40

1,89,190,14

13,989.79

3,96,594.57
89,052.07

--Jp-'7'54-250-

___3,21,53229_

7.36

1

1

Basic & Diluted Earning 13.71

Accountlng 1

The notes referred to above form an intergal part of these consolidated ftnancial statements.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Nt-
FIN

A

This is the consolidated statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date
For and on behalf of

Ralq.rl. & A$ociates
Chartered Accountants

No.3{4241E

e Dibya Aganval
Partner

&."14 U.ll,a .
MembeEhip No. 304601

(Santanu Kumar Hazrel
Company Secrrtary

l35A,BRBBasuRoad
Kolkata - 700 001
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tt.03.2021 31.03.2023

(A) Cash Flow Frcm Operating Activiti6
Net ProfiU(LoEs) Before Tax

Adiustments For i
Share of Profiu (Loss) of Associates
lnterest Received

16,876.53

Gain on Restatement of Non Current
lnvestments ( Net) (11,

Share of Profit from Partnership Firm l'l2A02.Ul
Dividend lncome

Cash Generated From Operations :-
Direct Taxes (Paid) / Retund Received ( Net )

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities
(B) Cash Flow Frcm lnvEting Actlvities :.

Purchase / Sale of Fixed Assets
Sale/ (Purchase) of lnvestments (Net)
Movement in Other Financial Assets/Bank Balances
lnterest Received

(lnvestment in)/Withdrawal from Partnership Firm
Dividend Received

Net Cash Flow From lnvestlng Actlvltios
(C) Cash Flow From Flnanclng Actlvltl6 :-

Changes in Share Capital
Net Cash Flow From Financing
Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents :-
Opening Balance of Cash & C.sh Equlvalents

t7fl;.221
203.61

(3,165.78)

(8,586.07)
(5,906.92)

(6.e0)

17 1

Operating Profiu(Loss) Befiore Working Capitial Changes

AdjustmenE For :-
lncrease in Other Financial Liabilities 145.47

11,929.221

345.17
(1,583.75)

(578.63)

(6.e0)

151

(19,662.1,6)
7,178.22

zrj[]

(585.53)
.11

(1,s73.64)

26,599.'11
(65,717.09)

3,165.78
(20,000.00)

24.88
(55,927.321

(57,500.96)

1

(15,6{0.75)
28,43.4 904.40

Closlng Balance of Cash & C.sh Equiyelenb (Note 2.0) 12,792.69

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statements refened to in our report of even date

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

/,*^;2
ir|ImliErrfiI

ing

5-Je- t". |tu&r.
(Santanu Kumar Hazra)
Company Secrctary

For and on behalf of
Rajgaria & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

RegbtEtion No.314241E

o6t^)a!

CA Dibya Agar ral
Partner

ilombe]3hip No. 304601

,35A,BRBBasuRoad
Kolkata - 700 001

I Dated:29MAY2024



ABHA PROPERTY PROJEGT LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATETENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3tST MARCH,2O24

Amount in Thousands

PARTIC LARS
nce a8

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year
Bahnce as at March 31,2023
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year
Balance as at iiarch 31,2024

No of Sha Amount
18,

18,99880 18,999.80

18.99.980 18.999.m

B. OTHER EQUITY

Statutory Reeerve
Capital Reserve (under 45lC of RBI

Act)

80,267.89 1,U,AU

't,706.05

(Amount tn Ftupeee Thousands)
Equity lnstrumeni

J:ffifll;]ffi: roralPARTICULARS

Balance as at narch 31,2022
Changes in accounting policy or prior period enors

Defferred Tax for Earlier Years
Restated balance at the beginning of the previous reporting period

Add: Realised Gain on Sale of lnvestment through FVTOCI
Transfer from Retained Eaming
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive lncome
Bahnco as at March 3{,2023
Changes in accounting policy or prior period enors
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Tnanafer from Retained Eaming
Add: ProfivLoss in Associates hansfeered from lnvestment ( see Foohote
1 of note no. 4)
ProfiU(Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive ln@me

Retained
Earning

958.29
5, ,8/.8.52

42,739.46
(1,706.05)
13,989.79

16.53
2,54, '10,01,
(42,735.46)

3,07,542.50 3,2'1,532.29

80,267.89 ,36,190 5,87,87 1.72,|
5,19,038.12 13,23,368.56

80,267.89 1,36,1 90 5,87,871 72 5,1 9,038.12 13,23,368.56

(1s6.52)

26,055.26 1,62,574.28

(1s6.52)

1,88,629.54

Bahnce as at lrarch 31,N4 80,267 1,36,190.E:t 6,1 770.46 6,81,612.0 15,t1,841.58
Footnote: For purpose & nature of Other Equity, refer (Note No. 10.5)

For & on behalf of Board of Directors For and on behalf of
Rajgaria & Associatee
Chartered Accountants

.Req istration No .31 4241E

,6qqs^rer-
CA Dibya Agamal

Partner
embeEhip No. 304601

135A, BRBBasuRoad
Kolkata - 700 0O1

/^*u 4eatunl-
u(naging DirEctor)(Amit Aga alla,

DIN: fi1338081

(Ad itya AgaMa

8,1
&^h. hF^ t\"C6.

(Santanu Kumar Hazra)
Company SecretaryDIN:001{t683
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1. SUMiIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUITTII{G FOUCIES

Statement o, Compllance
These Financial Statements comply in all material aspeds with lndian Accounting Standard (|ND'AS)
notifed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act), Companies (lndian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provision of the Act.

Basls of PrEparetlon
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis
except for cerEin fnancial instuments that are measured in terms of relevant lnd AS at fair values/
amortized costs at the end of each reporting period.

Financlal Assets and Llabllltleg
Financial assets and financial liabilities (financial instruments) are recognized when this unit of the

company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Finencial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than

financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted

from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

([i) Flnanclal A3set3 or Lieblll es at Fah value Through Proflt or Lo€8

Financial instruments which do not meet the criteria of amortized cost or fair value through other

comprehensive income are measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current ifthey are expected to be realised

or settled within operating cycle of the unit of the company wttich is generally taken as 12 month

otherwise these are classitied as non' cunent.

The classification of financial inskuments whether to be measured at amortized cost, at Fair value

Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or at Fair value Through other comprehensive lncome (FVTOCI)

depen-<ls on the obieclive and contractual terms to which they relate'

Classification of financial instruments are determined on initial recognition'

(i) Fln.ncl.l $s€t3 and flnsncial llebilltles me.su7€d at Amortlzed Coat

iinancial assets held within a business model whose obiective is to hold these assets in order to

collect contractual cash florus and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified

dates to cash f,ofls are measured at amortized cost'

The financial assets and ,inancial liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized

cost using Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) method.

(ll) Flnanclal A$et at Falr Valrc Through Other Compiehensive lncome (FVTOCI)

iinancial assas are measured at fa-h value through other comprehensive income if these financial

assots are held within a business model whose ofuective is achieved by both collecting contractual

;;h-d" and selling financial a$ets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on

!p""in"J 0"t"" to 
""si 

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

o'rt trnaing. Subsequent to initiat recognitiin, they are measured at fair value and changes therein are

recognized directly in other comprehensive income'

,. i, i,-; r -..,

.1 .: - i,_r..\.

' ,l,.i ' dg'r ,.
i:. i\.*-- .

.::"-.i.

Kolkata

2 I MAY 2024



1. SUMMARY OF S]GNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOUCIES
lnvestmenb: lnvestments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of each investment,
anived at on the basis of market value in cese of quoted shares & break up value as per last available
audited accounts in case of unquoted shares, considered seperately is made in the accounts unless
the same is considered to be temporary in nature.

Revenue Recognltlon: Revenue is recognised on transfer of significant risk & reward of ournership to
the buyer and so long as there is a reasonable assurance for its colleciion. lf at the time of raiEing of
claim, it is unreasonable to expect ultimate collection, revenue collec{ions are postponed, Dividend
income is recognized when right to receive the same is established. lnterest income is recognized on
time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable.
lncome & Expenditure: All items of income & expenses are accounted for on their accural to the
extent possible & unless otherwise stated. Periodical expenses viz insurance, laxes etc. are not
apportioned over the period but are charged as & lvften incurred.

Provlslon for curent and DeforEd rax: provision for cunent tax is made aller taking into
consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the lncomBtax Act, 1961. Defenjd tax
resulting from "timing difference" between taxable and accounting income is accounted for using the
tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. Defened
tax asset is recognised and canied foMard only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the
asset will be realised in future. Deferred Tax Assets & D6fened Tax Liability have been offset as they
relate to the same goveming tax lan s.

Provlsions, Contlngent LiabilitiB and Assots: Prcvisions involving substantial degree
of estimation in measurement are recognized when there i6 a present obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that there will be an outllow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are notrecognised but are disclosed in the notas. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed inthe financial statements.

cash-Flows: cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted forthe effects of transactions of non'cash nature and/or for items of income & expenses associated withinvesting and financing aclivities. The cash flows from operating, investing & financing aaivities ot ilecompany are segregated.

,@
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ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LTD.
NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH.202,|

NO. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

2.O CASH & CASH EOUIVALENTS
CASH ON HAND
BALANCES WITH BANKS
ln Cunent Accounts 7,325.89
In Fixed Deposits 4,650.00 27,546.61

12,792.69 28,403.44

8{ 6.80 856.83

8,121.61
11,975.89 19,425.00

(Amount in Rupees Thousands)

ilote PARTICULARS As At
3'.|..03.2024

As At
31.03.2023No.

3.0 OTHER BANK BALANCES
Bank Deposits with more than 3 month
maturity but less lhan 12 month maturity 94,500.00

94,500.00

P

''l,t "@Ko\\ata
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fil

arf,'It[rr 31.03.2023[-tr!
tl.0
/t.l INVESTIIIIENT AT COST

Unouoted Eouiw Shares of R8. 10/- each
ln Associate Comoanies
Negus Distributors PM. Ltd.
( See Footnote 1)

Purbanchal Cement Ltd. ( See Footnote
1&2)

TOTAL (A}

1.2
Eouitv Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Anindra Sales Pvt Ltd.
Anjaney Ferro AlloF LU.
Abbott Marketing Pvt Ltd
Kharkia Properties Pvl Ltd.
Subh drishti Consultants Pvt LE

( See Footnote 'l)
Maithan Ceramic Ltd

No.ofsharcs A4gllll No.ofshaBs Amount

3,78,900 43,725.OO

54,14,856 77
77,913,18 43,725.00

2,40,000
5,28,500
1,11,875
I,A,*O

/r,58,1,00

E,26,236.,{5
35/407,32
11,975.21

2,40,000
5,26,500
I ,11,475
1,24,950
1,25,000

3,412.80
7,O7,821.34

20,232.59
10,750.70
34,460.94

TOTAL (B}

Non- Cumulative. Non- Convertible. Redeemable. 0.1% PEGrence Shar€s of Rs. 10/- each
Maithan Ceramic Ltd 1,38,E2,627 12,11A17 13,85,237

11 11,00,000.00

8,04,t57 
',87,369.19

6,04,157 'l,'14,069.67

744.O1

'12,536.94

11 615.45

it 17
4.3

Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd 11,00,000
TOTAL (C)

1.1
116.17 152.39

#,47,624,26 1,88,005.64 35,87,624.26 1,76,085.62HDFC Low Duration Fund- Regular Plan -
Growth

TOTAL (D)
/I.5 IITVESTITIENT IN PARTNERSHIP FIRi'

Maithan lntemational
At the beginning ofthe year
Addition/(Withdrawal) during the yea(Net
Share of Proliu(Loss) for the year
At the end ofthe year

TOTAL (e)
Total of lnvestnenqA to E)

r,88,905.64

2,58,585.70
20,000.00

906.92

1,76,085.62

2,U,492.62

2,84,,t92.63

,|

2,96,894.97

Kol<ata @
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ABHA PROPERTY PROIECT LTD.
I{OTE8 OiI COIiISOLDATED FINATiICIAL STATEiIEiITS FOR THE YEAR EiIDED 3IST ARCH.2O24

(Amount ln Rupees ThoBand3)
1{OTE
NO.

PARTICULARS AS AT
31.03.202a

AS AT
3'1.03.2023

4.0 INVEST ENTS CONTD...

EsEiE e! !@! E E4!cE[i!tu
Mshal Agarwalla
Aditya Agar$/alla
Abha Refraclories Ltd.

Dhruv Agaffalla
Anshuman Agarwalla
Raghav Agarrl/alla

%p!.SIse.js
Pagl&el!

35.00%:
40.00%
20.00%

6.00%
6.00%
5.00%

AElc!!
1,06,069.60
1,43,927.99
2,96,894.97

59,670.4r
25,t{4.88
,r5 t14.EE

16,32 73

% of Share in
ProfiUloss

35.00%
40.00%
20.00yo

6.00%
6.00%

Amount
8't,815.21

1,16,O22.72
2,84,492.63

55,019.53
20,464.01

____s$ls2l3_
Footnole: Capital as slated aborre is inclusive of share in ProfiUloss ior the year & is net of

lnvestments Outside lndia
lnvestments Within lndia

6.00% 40,464.01
5,98,278.'11

firm's tax, if any.

I
14,19,203.67
14,19,203.6?:Trffi5'
2,84,492.62

{6
1.7

{8

AggEgate Book value of Unquoted lnvsatment3
lnvEstnrnl ln PrrtneBhlp Flrm

egus DbtdbutoE Pt L Ltd'
Carrying Amount B/F

Share of ProfiU(Loss) Adiust€d

Less Amount transhred to Retained

Eaming ( See Footnote 1)

Less Amounl transEned to invesfinent in

Purbanchal Cement Ltd. ( See Footnote
1)
Canying Amount of lnvestment

Purbanch.l Cement Ltd.
Amount lnvested
Share of ProfiU(Loss) Adjusted

/t3,725'00

(156.52)

43,928.61
(203.61)

(43 ,568rf8)
43,725.OO

77,9/t3J8

Carrying Amount of lnveslment

-fl.Y3aa--Foo0roto:1) ln tetms of Ordsr dated 18th Septenber,2o23 passed by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata

Bench,M/s Negus DistributoB R^ Ltd was amalgmated with IWs Subh Orishti Cons ultants Privste Limited whicrt w8s

ullimately amalgmated with ii/s Purban chal Cement Ltd. w.e.f. 1st April, 2022. A6ording to the Share exchange ratio in

the Scheme of Atrangement, approve d by the Hon'ble National ComPanY Law Tribunel,Kolkata Bench, 64'14'856'

equity Shales r,tere alloted egainst 3,78,gOO Equity shares of Negus Distributors h4 Ltd. & 1,25,000 equity shares of

Subh dhristi consultanG pYt Ltd.. Acqordin gly share in Profit 7 Loss of erest\t{tlile Ncgus Dbtributors accounted for till

previou year has been transfened to Retained Eaming & the cost thereof ha been tranlferred to invested in purbanc*ral

Cement Ltd.

Footnote :2) Since the audited accounB of M/s Purbanchal cement Ltd. for the yesr ended 31st March,2024 are not

available, the share of Profiu( Loss) for the year 2024 is not considered

Footnots: 3) FairValue of unquoted equity Shar€s measured through ocl has been arrived on the basis of last

available audited financial statements of the respec{ive investee company'

,to/,hta @
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ln

FII'Frt'rzl 31.03.2023
NOTE
NO.
Sfd

Bank Deposits with more than 12 month maturity
Aocurued lnterest on Fixed Deposits 7 rr'Ir:Il

81,000.00
941.4E

I{OTE
1{O.

tn ThouBrnds

31.03.202331.B.mA
m

Payment of Taxes (Nel of Provisions) alrrn
rr,l.I

56,{..92--------=5a3-

ln Thou3ands
AT

iIOTE
NO.

Zlifil!
slFFrlirn

7.O
3'1.03.2023

120.11
E&enses Payable AT.*J:]

1

NO.

1il
FT

31,O3.202a
AT

31.03.2023

WE
ln respecl of Timing difference in lncome r.rl

192,86

1 u

73

Footnote: Defen€d Tax A$et in respecl
of business losses available for set of
has not been recognised due to
uncertainity of re8lisation.

Ko$ata @



ln Thou3ands

3'1.03.2023
AS AT

31,03,202
tElTi
NO.

9.0
9,1

FUAiI:I4friEtl No, of Sh.r€!

1.14.00.000

No. of Shares

19.00.000

TlttilltiTt Amount

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
At the beginning ofthe year
Changes during the yeEr
At the end ofthe year

rE,99,9E0 ,t8,999.80 18,99,980 18,999.80

1 1

9.2

9.3

9.,t

J.gdbh Pr.rad Agat alla
Swatl Agamall.
Orchid ilerch.nts Pvt Ltd.

.nsion Pvt Ltd.
Sita Ag.n alla

No. of ShaEs
6,83,730

96,000
1,20,UO
1,78,000
1,7g,UO

S-leld
35.99%
5.05%
8.33%
9.37%

25.2614

No. of Shares
6,83,730

s6,000
1,20,340
1,78,000
4,7S,UO

% held
35.99%

5.O5%

6.33%
9.37o/n

25.26%
.a:E

3.6

s.7

rri

EF[jilTE %_bCI{ No. of Shaes % held
Jrgdirh Pn$rd Agirvrlla HUF 68,500 3.61% 68,500 3.6io/"
Basant Kum Agaru.lla Ht F 80,050 1.21% 80,050 4.21o/o
Jegdlsh Prrs.d Agfludh 6,83,730 38,99% 6,83,730 35.99%
Dhruy Agrflyall. 5,000 0.26% S,OOO 0.26%
Anshuman Agarwalla 5,000 0.26% S,O0O 0.26%
Sw.tl Agar .lb 96,000 €.05% 96,000 S.OS%
Slt Age .ll. 4,79,8,t0 25.26% 4,79,840 25.26o/o
Foofriote: ln case, where any shareholder is holding more than 50/6 of share capital in one year but less than 5% of
share cepitel in another year, the infomation about shareholding for the year in which the shareholding is less than 5016

has not been fumished.

There wes no change in promoteB holding during the period/ year
The company has only one class of shares viz. equity shares having a par value of fu. 10/- per share. Each
shareholder is eligible for one vote per share & is entitled to pro-rata dividend, if any, dedared on equity shares. ln the
event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible lo receive lhe remaining asseb of the company afrer
distribution ofall preferential amounls, in the proportion to their shareholdings.

During the year ended , the Authorised Equity Share Capital of the Company has been increased from Rs. 19,000 in

thougand divided into 19,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 1,14,000 in thousands divided into 1,14,00,000

Equity shares of Rs. lO eadl in terms ofResolution pasaed in Annual General Meeting held on 25th August,2023

9.t lniomation about movement in aggregate number of shares during the period of five yeers immediately pr€ceding the

date et r hich Balsnce Sheet is prepared:

g3!9 !o@ Date lQ.9rc[eIcs
Equlty Shares bought back Nll Nil Nil Nil

Shares allotted as tully paid up pursuant l{il ll Nil Nil

to cont?ct without payrnent being
received in cash

Sharss allotted as tully paid up by way of Nll Nll Nil Nil

bonus shares

@
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ln
AS AT

31,03,202/r 31.03.2023
r0.0
10.1

IIIE{IIIry
At the beginning of the year
Changes during the year
At the end ofthe year

10.2@
At the beginning ofthe year
Changes during the year
- Transi-.r from Surplus

At the end of the year
IO.3 RETAINED EARNING

At the beginning of the year
Deffered Tax for Earlier year
Add: Transfer from Other Comphrensive
income
Add: ProliuLoss in Associates
transfeered lrom lnveslment ( see
Foolnote 1 of note no. 4)

ProflU (Loss) for the year

Apomorialion durino the vear
Transfer to Statutory Reserve
At the end ofthe year

At the beginning ofthe year
Deffered Tax for Earlier year

Less: Realised Gain on Sale of Equity
lnstrument through FVTOCI-fansfer to
Retained eamings
ProfiU (Loss) for the year
At the end ofthe year

80,257.89

1,36,190.83

80,267.E9

1,36,190,83

6,13,770.46

80,267.89

1,34,484.78

706.0s

5,42,606.81
9,958.29

12,739.46

989.79
5,89,577.77

1,706.05

3,40,693.32
86,458.24

80,267.89

1,36,190.83

5,87,871.72

5,87,871,72

(r56.62)
26,055.26

5,13,?70.46

5,t9,038.12

42,739.46
3,O7,542.50

2r.,0 't2

10.5 Nature & Purpose of Other Equity
i) Capital Reserve represents amount created on account of amalgmation in earlier year.
ii) Statutory reserve represenG amount transfened as required under Seclion 4$lC of RBI Act
ii) Retained Earnings generally represenb the undistributed prolits/amount of acfltmulated earnings of the Company.
iv) other Comprehensive lncome represents the balance in equity relating to gain/losses on rs.meaEurement of
lnveslments, nel of taxes , if any. This will not be reda$ified to Statement of profit and Loss.Any realised gain/loss on
sale of investments is lransber€d to retainEd eaming

I
'l
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tn

31.03.2024
YEAR E

31.03.2023
tt.0 oTHER tl{c( E

Gain on Restatement of Non Curent lnvestments ( Net)
Share of Profit in Partnership Fim
Dividend lncome
lnterest lncome on Deposits
lntoBet on Tax Refund
Liabilities no longer required written back

l'1,784,08
1L1O2.31

A.E8
7,137.79

10.43
18.00

-!1,!97'!3-

8,586.07
5,9(b.92

3,164.93
0.85

17,654.77

in
II:rIi ENDED

31.03.202331.03.2024NO.
t2.0

Salary & Allorvance 193.50 't55.50
'155.50

tn

F,rr,Fr]itrl 31.03.2023
NOTE
NO.
13.0

Adverlisement
Depository Se ice Charges
Filing Fee
Listing Fee
Legal & Professional Fee
Payment To Auditors
Rates & Texes
Direclors' Sitting Fee
Demat Charges
MiEcellaneous Expenses

For Statutory Audit Fee
For lncome Tax MstterB
For Certification
For Reimbursment of GST

87.50
7.50

25.50
3.16

77.50
7.50

12.OO

15,96
20,55

757,37
l53rao
560.94
123.65
30.05
68.00

0.59
23,21

12.85
21-24
42.26
47.20

177.46
97.00
10.06

't.90

13.16
423.1

Kolkata
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ln
I[{TJ

?rriIvfttl 3',t.03.2023NO.

14.0
-Net Profiu(Loss) attributable to Shareholders
-Weighted Average number of Equity

Shares outstanding as al the end of the
year

-Basic & Oiluled Eaming per Share
18,99,980

13,989.79

18,99,980
7.3613.71

ln

Frrfr{izl 31.03.2023NO.
,15.0

(To The Extent Not Pmvided For)
15.1 ContinoentLi.bllltle.
15.2 Commlhr.nts

i L
NIL

NIL
NIL

(Amount ln Rupeo3 ThoG.nd3)
I{OTE

o.
YEAR ENDEO

3't.03.202
YEAR ENDED

31.03.2023

t6.t
16.2

1{lL
IrllL

NIL
NIL

NOTE
t{o,
I7.O EUEILEEE9BIIIS

The Company is an investment company operating in lndia only & as such segment repodng as defined in Accounting
Standard 17 iE not applicable.

NOTE
NO,

18.0 As required in tems of paragraph 18 of "Master Direction- Non-banking Financial Company- Non€yslemically
lmportant Non - Deposit taking Company (R$erve Bank) Directions, 2016", a schedule containing required information
is endosed separately in slandalone financial staGment.

,@
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tr.Iii
NO.

PARTICULARS

19.0
19.1 Lbt of ltl.t d partles wlth whom tr.nsactlom hst/e trken plece dudng the year:

Subsidiary Company Abh. Reftectorl$ Ltd.
Abh. Fero Alloyr Ltd.

Associste Company Negus Dbtlbutors hn. Ltd, ( Refer Footrote)
Purb.nchd C.ment Ltd.

Key Managcment PeBonnel Vbhal AgarYrella - Dir€ctor
Amlt Agarwatla - ltlanaglng DiEctor
Suiesh Kumar Sharflra - Msn.glng Dlructor
Sumlt Agaflyalla - Dlr€ctor
Adltya Agrrwalh - Dlrcctor & CFO
Salan Kumer Khsrkla - lndapendent Dlr€ctor ( Upto 29ft .y,2023)
Saian Kumar Kha*la - CFO E Dlrcctor
Vlkash Kharkia - Ditrctol
NlBnjan Kumar Agaflual - Dlrector
Ram6h Kuma, Podd.r - Dirtctor (Upto 29th .y,2023)
Abhllt Bhatt cheriee - Dlrcctol
AJ.y Sheme - Dlr"ctor e CFO

andeep KaurJalswrl - Dir€ctor ( w.e,f 29th
Ayushl Kh.ltan - DiEctor ( w.s.f 29th ay,2023)

Entrrpds$ over whicfi
Santenu Kumat H.zra

althrn lntemadonal
W.a,l22nd

Manegement Personnel & their relatives
have signifi cant inf uence

Relatives of l<ey Management Personnel Nil

le.2 !qE!!e sf tEn3.ction gllh trElgg Tra3actlon dudng the yeri Amount Outstanding during the yesr
D3Igili 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
C.pltal lntrcductlonr(wlthdnw.l) fiom Fi]m - et

Maithan lntemational - 2O,OOO.0O

Sharr of Proltt, lLoe3l from Fttm

31.03.2021 31.03.2023

2,96,69/1.97 2,61,192,A3

tFr{il t ri,l

Maithan lntemational

Sanatanu Kumar Hazra

Ayushi Khaitan
Msndeep ]Gur JaiswEl

12.10

165,00

3a.00
3/1,00

5,906.92

130.00

9.00
9.00

cas$ whsre relationship ceased to exist as at the end of the year, balances outsianding, if any, frorn such parties have
not b€en disclosed.
2) ln bms oI Order dated 18th Septenber,2o23 passed by Hon'ble National compsny Law Tribunat, Kotkata Bench,M/s
Negus DisfibutoB Pvt Ltd. was amalgmated with M/s Subh Drishti Consultants PrivaG Limited which ultimately
amalgmated wih M/8 Purbanchal Cement Ltd. w.e.l tst April, 2022. Horyever, the order was received in September
2023 , hence M/s Negus Distributors Pvt Ltd. uras ceases to be associate

"o, ,:).-. _ .

D

2 3 lr,1AY 2024



1{OTE
NO.

PARTICULARS

20,o
20.1
20,2

Additional r€gulatory lnfomatlon rcqulEd by Scha.lule lll of Compeni.! Act 2013
The Company does not have any relationship with struck off company u/B 248 of Companies Ad,2013
The company has complied with lhe number of laysrB pre3cribed under clauae 87 of ssction 2 of the Companies
Ac1,2013 read with Companies (Restriclion on Number of layers ) rules 2017.

Utilization of borrowed funds & Share Premium: The company has no bonowEd funds & has not utilised its Share
Premium during the year

The company has not been declared as a Wiful Defaulter by any Bank or financial institution or other lender.
There are no charges required or satisfac'tion thereof wtrich are yel to b€ rrgi8tered with th6 Regbtrar of Companies
beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not been sancationed not availed any working capital facilities by banks Equhing it to file quarterly
retums or stalements with the banks.
No proceedings have been initialed or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transaclions (Prohibition) Act 1988(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

20.1
20,5

trm

20,6

,TN

NOTE
NO.

?[f,at!{rl|7r*l

21,0 The consolidated linancial statements presents the consolidated accounb of Abhe Property Prclect Ltd. with its
Subsidiary Companies (Abha F.lTo Aloys Ltd. & Abhe RefHctorl6 Ltd,) & Associate Company (Negus Distributors

hrl Ltd - Upto June 2023 & Purbenchal Cemsnt Ltd ) all incoPorated in lndia.

[-'!fffil
Errlrrtrl ril:!rl@'r4

r-rr,n

Parent

Sulsldiadcs
lndl8n :

Abha Ferro Alloys LU.
Abha Retrac{ories Ltd.

None

Associates
lndlan
Purbanchal Cement Ltd.

Negus Dislributors Pvt. Ltd.
Foeign :
None

Joint Ventures (lndian/ Foreion) - None

4E.56% 7,31,1 .'.17 E r:ql (1,533.'t7)

4.11%
1t.30%

6,06,E76.03
1,70,802.38

t{.A.

59.95%
45.94%

15,618.9/t
fi,909.79

N.A. N.A.

0.00%

N.A.

t{.4.

1{.4.

T{.A.

0.00%

N.A"

N.A.

N.A.

.A.

N.A.
100.00% 15.11 r:ZII.II 100.00%

Kolkata ,@
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This sec'tion gives 8n overview ot the significance offinancial inslruments for the Group and provid$ additional
infomation on consolidated balance sheet items thal contain financial instrumenls. Th€ details of significant accounting
policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses
are recognised in respec{ of each class of FinancialAsset, Financial Liability and Equity lnstrument are disclosed in
Note No. 'l b the financial sEtements.

ffi
Note No:

AS AT
31.03.202

AS AT
31.03.2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Balances
lnvestments
Olher Finacial Assets
Total Fln.nciel A$.t3 cr3ured .t Amortised Co3t

ileaauEd at Fair Valu. thrcugh Oth€r Comprchenslve lncome
lnvestments - Non Cunent

lleasurud .t Fih V.lu. thrcugh Stat ment of Prulft & Loss
lnvesUnenls - Non Cufl€nt

Other Financial Liabilities
Total Fln.nclal Llabllities feasurcd atAmo iaed Co3t

16

10,15,572:t7 8.90,746.04

.62

465,58 120.'t1
rrr.ft;l 120.'11

2
3
4
5

12,792.85 28,403.44

5,63,7tt.09 5,04,303.24
7 103.9a 81 1-48

11i,.72 1

4

4

7

6
2 3 I'iii\' ?024



NOTE
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23.0
The Companys financial liabilities comprise capital and other payables, The main pumose of these fnancial lisbilities is
to fnance the company's operations. The company's financial as3€t3 indude other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, investnents at cost/fair value and deposit.

The Company is e)poged to market risk. The company's senior management oversees the management of the risks.
The Board of Direclors reviarrs and agrees to policies for managing each of these risks, which alB summarised below:

ad(et Rlsk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash for., of a financial instrument will lluduate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk mainly comprises of risk, su.fi as raw material price risk. Financial instuments afbc{ed by
market risk include FVTPL investnents, etc.

The table pmvides undiscounted cash now towards non- derivative financial liability into relevant maluritie8 based on
the remaining period at balance sheel date to contractual maturity date.

Pl]tlcula13
wtrhh I

yotr
Pry.bla ln molr

thln I ytel r i:trll

As at 3l !t f,lrch 2023

Other Financial Liabilltle8

Aa at 3rEl lrarch 202,1

Other Financial Liabilities

120.11

zIT{{t

120.1',l

ffiI.I.IJ

tlf.Li PARTICULARS
NO.
..^ CAPITAL iIA AGEIIENTz+.u 

-

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes lssued Equity Capital, Capital R$erve and all
other Equity Reserves attributable to the equity holdeB of the company. The primary objec.tive of the companys capital
management is to maximise the Share holder value, The Company manages its capital struciure and mek6s
adiustments in line with changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adiust the capital structure, the Company may

adiust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to shareholdeB or issue new shares or sale assets to

reduce debt. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by totgl capital plus net debt.

The company includes within net debt, interest bearing long term loans and bono ,ings less cash and cash equivalents.

"o
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Kol,kata



, , ABHAPROPERTYPROJECTLTD,
NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEIIIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST I'ARCH.2O24

For the year ended
NOTE PARTICULARS

NO.
%age Variance

tl.03.2024 31.03.2023
25.0 Rftlo AnalysyE & ltE Elements

(a), Capital to risk - weighEd assets ratio
Numerator : Paid Up Capital

@iEoI: Aggreted Risk Weighted tusets
Reason of Variance: Not Applicable as there is no credit, Market or operational risk

(b) Tier-1 CRAR
Numerator : Shareholders' Equity
Denominator : Aggreted Risk Weighted AsseE
Reason of Variance: Not Applicable as there is no credit, Market or operational risk

(c) Tier-2 CRAR

Ng!@EI : Shareholders' Equity + SupplErnentary Capital (Provision fur Loan Loss, Revaluation Reserve,
Undisclosed Reserve etc.)
Denominator : Aggreted Risk Weighted Assets
Reason of Variance: Not Applicable as there is no credit, Market or operational risk

(d) Liquidity Coverage Ratio (0,82) (0.49)
Numerator : Liquid A$ets i.e. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Denominabr : Total Net Cash Flows
Reason of Variance: Not Appllcable as below 25%

0.66

NOTE PARTICULARS
NO
26.0 Previous yea/s figures have been regrouped/reclassitied, wherever necessary, to conform to the cunent year

For & on behalf of Board of Direcbrs

DIN: ltlt33808{

For and on behalf of
R4garla & A$oclatos
Chartered Accountants

ReglstEtion No.3l 424{ E4-*Z
(tuilft Agam.ll., ltl(raging DlrEctor)

"r.9-
"&

6a^^!F-h. hrra,
(Santanu Kumar Hazra)
Company Secretary

2I I.4AY 2024

cADibyaAga at
Partner

tlembeEhlp No. 304601

1354, BRBBasuRoad
Kolkata - 700 001
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